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OCBC Bank (Macau) Limited (the “Bank”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
OCBC Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (*OCBC Hong Kong"), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. Previously known as Banco Weng Hang, S.A., the
Bank was established in 1941 and has 428 employees.

OCBC Hong Kong, the former Wing Hang Bank, Limited became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC”)
on 15 October 2014.

OCBC is the longest established Singapore bank, formed in 1932 from the
merger of three local banks, the oldest of which was founded in 1912. It is one
of the world’s most highly-rated banks, with Aal by Moody’s and AA-by both
Fitch and S&P. Recognised for its financial strength and stability, OCBC is
consistently ranked among the World's Top 50 Safest Banks by Global Finance
and has been named Best Managed Bank in Singapore by The Asian Banker.

OCBC is the second largest financial services group in Southeast Asia by
assets. The Group offers a broad array of commercial banking, specialist
financial and wealth management services, ranging from consumer,
corporate, investment, private and transaction banking to treasury, insurance,
asset management and stockbroking services.

OCBC's private banking services are provided by its wholly-owned subsidiary
Bank of Singapore, which operates on a unique open-architecture product
platform to source for the best-in-class products to meet its clients’ goals. Its
insurance subsidiary, Great Eastern Holdings, is the oldest and most
established life insurance group in Singapore and Malaysia. Its asset
management subsidiary, Lion Global Investors, is one of the leading asset
management companies in Southeast Asia.

The Group’s key markets are Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia and Greater
China. It has close to 420 branches and representative offices in 19 countries
and regions.

The Bank, as part of the OCBC group of companies, offers customers an
augmented banking network, global market access and an extensive range
of products and services for personal and business financial needs.
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& Shareholder
EEFIRT(FR)ERAT OCBC Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
RE B Incorporated in Hong Kong
BEEe Board of Directors
BEERIE Chairman

TritE Mr WANG Ke

2= Directors

ERELE Mr LOU Pou Hong
EERLE Mr CHIM Wai Kin
BEELE Mr TSANG Tak Yee
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Mr CHAN Han Wo (retired on on 23 August 2024)
Ms PUN Vai Kuan (appointed on 23 August 2024)
Ms VU Sin Man (appointed on 23 August 2024)

Supervisory Council
Ms TAM Ha Kei Abby

Ms LEUNG Hoi Yan

Mr QUIN Va

General Meeting Committee

Mr LOU Pou Hong

Mr CHAN Han Wo (retired on on 18 October 2024)
Ms VU Sin Man (appointed on 18 October 2024)
Mr LIN Jian

Company Secretary
Mr LIN Jian
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Business Development and Management Report

FREE Mr. Wang Ke
BEEEFE Chairman

20245 BFIREERIBEHEF - BIELEA  In 2024, the economic environment in Macau has gradually recovered.
IR 2024F 2 FAMAEELEREFELRE  According to data from the Statistics and Census Service, the local Gross
£88% BESTFEELCEREMRIFETE BE  Domestic Product grew by 8.8% in real terms compared to the previous year.
RERBFERS MEMETANTE: 5%  Despite the overall economic environment remaining stable this year, loan
RITERFRAT R FAIZTIE - ZAM - demand remained subdued, and the effects of interest rate cuts continued to
ARATA2024 535 B UK AD8R152% 2 IBfE FHiR pose challenges and uncertainties for the banking sector. Nevertheless, our
s A REFIERIS SHIEMBU  Bank recorded a mild increase of 2% in net interest income for 2024, while
AEBBENE  EIBE4%- H 22024128 total operating income grew by 4% compared to previous year. Notably, non-
IHFLIEFE ATEFM B A2ERPI L EE  interestincome showed significant improvement with an increase of 14%. For
A350ERMIT FHBRRESERERA4% B the year ending 31 December 2024, our Bank’s net profit amounted to MOP
Gh RITHEEBERBRITWEEBE X IREE S| 207 million, total assets reached MOP 35 billion, and the average return on
AEZTREREERAE035% EARFEELLEH  equity was 4%. Additionally, our Bank continues to maintain a good quality of
FEIE 24.26% 2 TR HEIKFE © assets, with a non-performing loan ratio set at 0.35% according to regulatory
asset classification, and a capital adequacy ratio remaining at a robust level of
24.26%.

ATHEBRMHNEBRENFMETENZEEAFE  The financial strength and stability of our Bank in Macau have also been highly

TRIBNSERT RESFHERBBAILTH > recognised by credit rating agency, as we received our first Al rating from

RS BEREERNTERETMSPHEME  Moody’s during the year. This rating will help to highlight our robust position

WAL AR EZARBER 2EFTEFR £ inthe competitive market and also assist in attracting deposits from a wider

MitseE € KRN ZHICRIRFREIE #£—  variety of customers, thereby enhancing the diversification of our funding

FIREETGEREIZEN - sources and improving liquidity, which will further promote business growth
and stability.

4  2024FEH
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Looking ahead to 2025, our Bank will continue to adhere to the Group’s
strategic policies, maintaining the momentum of business growth. We will
leverage the extensive network of OCBC Group to enhance collaboration
with Hong Kong and Singapore, promoting cooperation in various businesses
across the Greater Bay Area. Furthermore, we will continue to accelerate our
digital transformation, expanding investments in technology and human
resources, optimising internal workflows, and developing a roadmap for
automation improvements to enhance work efficiency and customer
experience.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to sincerely thank our customers
for their continued support and trust in our Bank. Your support is the greatest
motivation for our ongoing progress. | would also like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to all our colleagues for their hard work and dedication. | look
forward to continuing to work hand in hand in the future, seizing market
opportunities, strengthening our competitiveness in the financial market and
creating even greater achievements together!

WangKe
Chairman

14 March 2025
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Report of the Supervisory Council
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According to the law and OCBC Bank (Macau) Limited’s (the “Bank”) Articles
of Association, the Supervisory Council (“We") should monitor the Bank’s
operation and management, and express an opinion on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the proposal of profit
distribution which are submitted by the Board of Directors.

We have carried out the necessary supervision, analyzed the operation and
management of the Bank for the financial year ended 31 December 2024, and
reviewed the 2024 Board of Directors’ report and the auditor’s report issued
by PricewaterhouseCoopers on 14 March 2025 for these financial statements
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank.

Based on the results of the reviews above, we are in the opinion that these

financial statements, proposal of profit distribution and reports submitted by
the Board of Directors should be approved in the Annual General Meeting.

President of Supervisory Council
TAM Ha Kei Abby

19 March 2025
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of OCBC Bank (Hong Kong) Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of OCBC, a company incorporated and listed in Singapore. The
Bank has applied the internal control objectives, principles and components
as set out in “The Internal Control Guidelines for the Authorised Credit
Institutions” issued by the Monetary Authority of Macau throughout the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Board of Directors

Throughout the year, the Board maintained a stable composition that
provided strong and consistent leadership conducive to making and
implementing decisions effectively and appropriately. Each Director
possesses skills and experiences appropriate to the business of the Bank. The
Board also includes personnel with the appropriate accounting and other
expertise necessary for the smooth running of the Bank. During the year, all
directors of the Bank received regular briefings on economic updates, the
Bank’s business, operations, risk management and corporate governance
matters as well as rules and regulations applicable to the Bank.

Members of the Board are as follows:

Mr WANG Ke (Non-Executive Chairman)

Mr LOU Pou Hong (Director & Chief Executive)

Mr CHAN Han Wo Herbert (Director & Deputy Chief Executive)
(retired on 23 August 2024)

Ms VU Sin Man (Director)
(appointed on 23 August 2024)

Mr CHIM Wai Kin (Non-Executive Director)

Mr TSANG Tak Yee (Non-Executive Director)

Ms PUN Vai Kuan (Non-Executive Director)
(appointed on 23 August 2024)

Annual Report 2024 7
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Supervisory Council

The Supervisory Council of the Bank has clear terms of reference. Its principal
functions are to independently review and monitor the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management system of
the Bank; oversee the audit process; and perform all other duties and
obligations stipulated in the relevant law and in the Articles of Association of
the Bank. The Supervisory Council reviews the audit coverage and approves
the internal audit plan, reviews the work, findings and recommendations of
the internal auditors. The Supervisory Council also discusses issues raised by
the external auditors and the regulators (if any), and ensures that
recommendations are properly implemented.

Members of the Supervisory Council are as follows:

Ms TAM Ha Kei Abby (President)
Ms LEUNG Hoi Yan (Supervisor)
Mr QUIN Va (Supervisor)

Corporate Strategy and Business Model

The Bank is a leading financial service provider in Macau. We aim to be the
preferred choice of our customers for financial services and to increase
shareholders’ value by maintaining a consistent growth in return on equity.

To be successful, we need to be focused and responsive as business
environments are challenging and ever changing. The Bank’s strategic
objective is to continue to strengthen both business and operational aspects
of the Bank to ensure satisfactory returns to shareholders and to further
improve the competitiveness of the Bank.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has established the following committees to oversee the day-to-
day operations of the Bank. All committees have specific terms of reference in
order to ensure that they discharge their functions properly and to report
back to the Board, where appropriate, their decisions and recommendations.
Information on these committees is set out below:
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Management Committee

The Management Committee meets regularly to review and approve all
major matters relating to the strategy and planning, operations, management
and performance of the Bank. It is granted powers and authorities necessary
for conducting and managing the Bank’s normal banking and related
activities.

Members of the Management Committee are as follows:

—  Director & Chief Executive;

—  Head of Consumer Financial Services;

—  Chief Executive Officer, OCBC Hong Kong

—  Head of Wholesale Banking;

—  Head of Operations & Technology Division;

—  Head of Finance Department;

—  Head of Credit Risk Management Department;
—  Head of Legal & Compliance Department;

—  Head of Human Resources Department; and
—  Head of Global Markets Department.

Credit Risk Management Committee

The Credit Risk Management Committee is responsible for supporting the
Board of Directors and OCBC Hong Kong (Group) Credit Risk Management
Committee in managing the Bank’s credit risk, including environmental, social
and governance (ESG) risk under responsible financing; overseeing the
execution of the credit risk management, framework and policies, to ensure
that credit risk taking is aligned with the Group’s risk appetite and business
strategy.

Members of the Credit Risk Management Committee are as follows:

—  Head of Credit Risk Management Department;

—  Head of Consumer Financial Services;

—  Head of Wholesale Banking;

— Head of Wholesale Credit Approval Team of Credit Risk Management
Department;

Head of Consumer Credit Approval Team of Credit Risk Management
Department; and

—  Head of Policy & Control Team of Credit Risk Management Department.

Annual Report 2024 9
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Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee is responsible for the
implementation and maintenance of the overall risk management framework
relating to balance sheet structure, market risk, interest rate risk in the banking
book and liquidity risk management of the Bank. It recommends policy and
guidelines to the Board for concurrence.

Members of the Asset and Liability Management Committee are as follows:

—  Director & Chief Executive;

—  Head of Finance Department;

—  Head of Consumer Financial Services;
—  Head of Wholesale Banking; and

—  Head of Global Markets Department.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee provides a structured, cohesive and
forward-looking mechanism to identify, measure, monitor and control the
various type of risks across the entire spectrum of the Bank’s activities. While
each of these risks is managed by the division/department with specialized
knowledge and expertise in that area, the Risk Management Committee is
assigned to oversee the overall assessment and management of these risks.
The Risk Management Committee aims to ensure that each level of risks is
within the parameters set by the Board and that the risk management process
meets the standards required by the AMCM.

Members of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

—  Director & Chief Executive;

—  Company Secretary;

—  Head of Operations & Technology Division;

—  Head of Credit Risk Management Department;

—  Head of Legal & Compliance Department;

—  Head of Finance Department; and

—  Designated Manager of Operational Risk Management, and Information
Security & Digital Risk Management.
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AML/CFT & Reputational Risk Committee

The Anti-Money Laundering (“AML")/Counter-Terrorist Financing (“CFT") &
Reputational Risk Committee is formed to oversee the management of
Financial Crime Compliance (“FCC") risk relating to Money Laundering (“ML"),
Terrorist Financing (“TF”), Sanctions and Fraud so that all ML/TF/Sanction/Fraud
cases or issues are properly monitored and addressed in a timely manner. It
meets regularly to discuss and approve actions and initiatives to mitigate risks
arising from ML/TF/Sanction/Fraud matters and ensures proper control
measures are in place to meet the AML/CFT/Anti-Sanction/Anti-Fraud statutory
and regulatory requirements.

Members of the AML/CFT & Reputational Risk Committee are as follows:

—  Head of Legal & Compliance Department;

—  Head of Credit Risk Management Department;
—  Head of Wholesale Banking;

—  Head of Consumer Financial Services;

—  Head of Operations & Technology Division; and
—  Head of Finance Department.

Internal Controls
The Directors are responsible for internal controls of the Bank and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

Procedures are designed to safeguard assets of the Bank; maintain proper
accounting records; and ensure the reliability of financial information used
within the business or for publication. Procedures have also been designed to
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify, control and report on major
risks the Bank faces. Risk management policies and major risk control limits
are approved by the Board.

Business and functional units are responsible for the assessment of risks
arising under their areas of responsibility and the management of such risks in
accordance with the Bank’s risk management policies and procedures. The
relevant risk management reports are submitted to the Management
Committee, Credit Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee, Risk Management Committee, AML/CFT &
Reputational Risk Committee and the Board for monitoring the respective
risks.

Annual Report 2024 "
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More detailed discussions on the policies and procedures for management
of major risks the Bank faces, including credit, market, liquidity and
operational risks as well as capital management, are included in the notes to
the financial statements.

Internal audit plays an important role in the Bank’s internal control framework.
It provides independent assurance on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal
control and compliance with policies and standards across all business and
operational units. Senior management is required to provide internal audit
with evidence to verify that it has acted fully on all the recommendations
made by external auditors and regulatory authorities. Internal audit also
advises senior management on operational efficiency and risk management
issues. The work of the internal audit function focuses on areas of higher risk
to the Bank as determined by a risk-based audit methodology. The Head of
Internal Audit Department reports to the Chief Executive and the President of
the Supervisory Council. Audit reports are submitted to the Supervisory
Council for review.

Macau, 14 March 2025
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OCBC BANK (MACAU) LIMITED
(incorporated in Macao with limited liability by shares)

We have audited the financial statements of OCBC Bank (Macau) Limited, set
out on pages 15 to 105, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2024, and the statement of profit or loss, statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region, and for such
internal control as directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Professional Committee of
Accountants of the Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Annual Report 2024 I 3
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of OCBC Bank (Macau) Limited, as at 31 December 2024, and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Government of
the Macao Special Administrative Region.

Li Ching Lap Bernard
Certified Public Accountant

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Macao, 14 March 2025
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Statement of Profit or Loss

B E2024F 12 A 318 IFFE For the year ended 31 December 2024
B 5
Note 2024 2023
FRMT TR T
MOP’000 MOP’000
F B A Interest income 1,258,621 1,171,000
FEXH Interest expense 5 (634,580) (556,305)
BRI EWA Netinterestincome 624,041 614,695
REE KRB A Fees and commission income 121,573 98,345
R% B RBEZH Fees and commission expense (8,451) (8,062)
REERASWATE Net fees and commission income 6 13,122 90,283
& WA Dividend income 16,981 17171
HAb WA Other income 7 17,497 21,994
Hh& A Operating income 77,641 744,143
EEIH Operating expenses 8 (367,932) (369,496)
MBREHERBANEERF Operating profit before
expected credit losses 403,709 374,647
TEHAfE AIB AR 2 & Change in expected credit losses 15 (169,768) 23,173
B B% A 55 A Profit before taxation 233,941 397,820
g Taxation 9 (27,377) (48,038)
FAATPBEFARITRRZEF Profit for the year attributable
to equity shareholders of
the Bank 206,564 349,782

FREEFI05H 2 M E B AT B KA — &

The notes on pages 22 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

B E2024F 12 A 318 IFFE For the year ended 31 December 2024
Bt 53
Note 2024 2023
FEMT TR
MOP’000 MOP'000
FRER Profit for the year 206,564 349,782
FREMEZEER Other comprehensive loss for
the year
BRrUESEZEERZXZER Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
—EHRITITHZRT — Deficit on revaluation of
bank premises 16 (116,363) (10,228)
—RER IR — Deferred taxes 13,964 1,227
(102,399) (9,001)
AT EEAEBEESFA - Equity securities measured at
HEf 2l 2 s iEs fair value through other
comprehensive income
—NTEEY — Fair value changes 29(@a) (138,467) (348,073)
—IEER A — Deferred taxes 16,616 41769
(121,851) (306,304)
HETEKESESEZEFHEZEE Iemsthat may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
—UAAFEEA=ZAHE @j st A - Debtinstruments measured at fair
EMemkas 2 E%E value through other
comprehensive income
NEEBEE — Fair value changes 19,843 58,820
—#AERE - Transfer to statement of
profit or loss
=P — Loss on disposal 7 (6,825) (11,619)
—TaHiE B X — Expected credit losses 454 (2,731)
BT IR — Deferred taxes (2,047) (4,458)
11,425 40,012
—REBRETF - Unappropriated profits
—iRITITHE — Bank premises
—IEER 1A - Deferred taxes 852 961
852 961
FAKRBEZHMZEER Other comprehensive loss
for the year, net of tax (21,973) (274,332)
FAAPBRFAITRRZEZE Total comprehensive (loss)/income
(E18) WEHE for the year
attributable to equity
shareholders of the Bank (5,409) 75,450

FNEEFI05B 2 BT BRI —

,T/'\ °

16 2024543

The notes on pages 22 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

R2024412 4318 As at 31 December 2024
B 5
Note 2024 2023
FRMT TR T
MOP’000 MOP’000
BE ASSETS
We REMFITRIZE LR RIETT  Cashand balances with banks
IE and central banks 12 988,973 1,265,053
BEEAGEE Trading assets 13 8,343 6,921
BFEFERRHEMIEE Advances to customers and
other accounts 14 17,488,110 19,702,595
JEW SR IER AT EBER Amounts due from ultimate holding
NEIVAEESGI SRS company, immediate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries 5,600,373 2,967,879
UAFEEFEEEZHA Financial assets measured at
EfemkaEsemEE fair value through other
comprehensive income 29 10,552,122 8,868,245
EEE Fixed assets 16 441,940 573,114
BEE Total assets 35,079,861 33,383,807

E22B EFE1058 2 M B A SRR — &8

17

The notes on pages 22 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

R2024 4125318 As at 31 December 2024
B 5
Note 2024 2023
FRMT TR T
MOP’000 MOP’000
a1F LIABILITIES
RITREGER LGS Deposits and balances of banks 17 20,061 -
EREEE - -TH -HFER Current, fixed, savings and
HF other deposits of customers 18 26,950,281 24,507,122
EEA®AR Trading liabilities 19 5,610 6,091
FEAT AR HARSE 18 Current tax payable 20 27,778 47,849
RLERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 20 136,851 166,438
HMARE REE Other accounts and provisions 21 330,244 467,315
JER&EIERAR  EBIER Amounts due to ultimate holding
YNSIDSEE EY Dy NI P company, immediate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries 2,591,094 2,937,641
BmafE Total liabilities 30,061,919 28,132,456
= EQUITY
f& A< Share capital 22(a) 360,000 120,000
(G Reserves 22(b)
— B General reserve 184,200 184,200
EERE Legal reserve 120,000 120,000
EhFEE Revaluation reserve 1,008,297 1,227,368
—REERBE General regulatory reserve - 167,009
BHBRET Unappropriated profits 3,345,445 3,432,774
Bmem Towlequty 5,017,942 5,251,351
BENMERETE Total liabilities and equity 35,079,861 33,383,807

HIRTTESEN2025F3 AR ERZEZEE - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Bank on 14

March 2025.
EFREE Wang Ke Chairman
EREEF Lou Pou Hong Director

FREEZFI058 2 M E B A 15 K H — &P

The notes on pages 22 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

B E2024F12H31H IFF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2024
2024

/T REEMRE REEMRE -REERG

fitst A& —-RE% EERE Efti% (ERE)  (FERE) (M) ERRE  BEER
Investment
Bank Investment revaluation General
premises  revaluation reserve  regulatory  Unappropri-

Share General legal  revaluation reserve (non- reserves ated Total
Note capital reserve reserve reserve (recycling) recycling)  (Note22b(v) profits equity

TR TEAR TR TRAR Tann TafR Tann TR TanR
MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP’000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000

WUEIFIBES A January 2024 120,000 184,200 120,000 367,530 (13,572) 873,410 167,009 343274 5,251,351
BERE Dividends paid 10 - - - - - - - (228,000  (228,000)
(BH)/BAEE  Transfer (from)/to reserve 240,000 - - (6,246) - - (167,009) (66,745) -
EREH Profit for the year - - - - - - - 206,564 206,564
ENEMZE Other comprehensive (loss)/

(B#)/ s gain for the year - - - (102,399) 1,425 (121,851) - 852 (@n9m)
NAENFIRLS A3 December 2024 360,000 184,200 120,000 258,885 (2,47) 751,559 - 335445 501942

FNEFEFI05E 7 W B AT EHREXN—2  The notes on pages 22 to 105 form part of these financial statements.

e
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Statement of Changes in Equity

EE2024F 12 H31H IFFZ

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2023
BT RAEMEE REABREE -RETHA
fitst RA& —RiEh  EREE  EREE  (BRE)  GEERW) (WEabw)  BRRE  EREE
Investment
Bank  Investment  revaluation General
premises revaluation reserve regulatory  Unappropri-
Share General Legal revaluation reserve (non- reserves ated Total
Note capital reserve reserve reserve (recycling) recycling)  (Note 22b(v)) profits equity
TR TEAR TRAL TEARL TRAL TAARL MR TEARL TR
MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000
NBFIAIEES  Atllanuary 2023 120,000 184,200 120,000 383,570 (53,584) 179,714 155,680 3,268,721 5,358,301
BRRE Dividends paid 10 - - - - - - - (182,400) (182.400)
(8H)/BAGE  Transfer (fom)/to reserve - - - (7039) - - 1329 4.290) -
ERETH Profit for the year - - - - - - - 349782 349782
EREMEE Other comprehensive (loss)/
(BB)/ Mz qain for the year - - - (9,001 40,012 (306,304) - 961 (274332)
NBFRANBES A3 December 2023 120,000 184,200 120,000 367,530 (13572) 873410 167,009 3430714 5,251,351

20

2024F F 8,

1055 7 MY sE#E A AN B 7 R R ) — 3P

The notes on pages 22 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement

B E2024F12H31H IFF/Z

For the year ended 31 December 2024

M5
Note 2024 2023
FEPM T FBFT
MOP’000 MOP’000
EARETHMmEEZHSFE Net cash inflow from
N operating activities 25(@a) 2,805,016 2,400,766
RETES Investing activities
BABTEE Purchases of fixed assets 16 (8,872) (15,886)
A EHENZD Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 57 -
BANAFEEFEBEEZS Purchase of financial assets
FFIAHMEEKE L CRIEE measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (7,676,650) (5,983,895)
HEREBERNAFEETEZER Proceeds from sales and
HEFHtAELMmemliams redemption of financial assets
CREEMESR measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income 6,584,691 5,429,006
[ &) Dividends received 16,981 17171
RETEMERAZESFE Net cash outflow from
__________________________________“__ir_ly_e_s_til]gactivities (1,083,793) (553,604)
REEE Financing activity
2R E Dividends paid 10 (228,000) (182,400)
MEETEMERAZESFE Net cash outflow from
. financing activity (228,000) (182,400)
BehERBESEEEINFE Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents 1,493,223 1,664,762
HeRERBESLEEMAIR Cash and cash equivalents at
o 1January 3,478,199 1,813,437
HeRZEFRBESEERI2A3IE  Cashand cash equivalents at
&R 31December 25(b) 4,971,422 3,478,199
BRETHMELEZRESEHE: Cash inflows from operating
activities include:
BHHE Interest received 1,298,136 1,144,212
EATFIE Interest paid 721,682 430,019

E22B EFE1058 Z M B A SRR — 8

,T/\ o

The notes on pages 22 to 105 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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General information

OCBC Bank (Macau) Limited (“the Bank”) was incorporated in Macau on
2 September 1963 and has its registered office and principal place of
business at 241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro, Macau. The Bank is engaged
in commercial banking and related financial services.

The Board of Directors considers the immediate holding and ultimate
controlling party of the Bank to be OCBC Bank (Hong Kong) Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong and Oversea-Chinese Banking
Corporation Limited, which is incorporated in Singapore respectively.
These financial statements were approved for the issue by the Bank’s
Board of Directors on 14 March 2025.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(@) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Government of the
Macao Special Administrative Region under Directive No. 44/2020
of the Secretary for Economy and Finance (the “MFRS”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires Directors to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Bank’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in Note 3.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for bank premises which are carried at
market value; financial instruments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) as explained in the accounting
policies set out in Note 2(c).

New standards and interpretationsissued but is not effective or
adopted

Effective from 1 January 2026, the MFRS will be replaced by the
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Professional Committee
of Accountants of the Government of the Macao Special
Administrative Region Notice No. 2/2024/CPC on 19 December
2024 (“New MFRS”). The New MFRS is mandatory for adoption from
the annual period beginning 1 January 2028. The directors are
assessing the impact of new MFRS to the Bank’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 FESHHERBE 4
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(b) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Macau Patacas, which is
the Bank’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to
the nearest thousands, except when otherwise indicated.

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets
The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI") or through fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"); and

—  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Bank has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Annual Report 2024 2 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 FESHHERBE 4
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

() Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

@

Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a
business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio
level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed, and information is provided to management.
The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio
and the operation of those policies in practice. In
particular, whether management’s strategy focuses
on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining
a particular interest rate profile, matching the
duration of the financial assets to the duration of the
liabilities that are funding those assets or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

—  how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated
and reported to the Bank’s management;

— therisks that affect the performance of the business
model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and its strategy of how those risks
are managed;

— how managers of the business are compensated
(e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash
flows collected); and
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 FESHHERBE 4
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)
Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(@ Business model assessment (Continued)

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior
periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However,
information about sales activity is not considered in
isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how
the Bank’s stated objective for managing the
financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realised.

—  Financial assets that are held for trading and whose
performance is evaluated or managed on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are
neither within the business model to hold to collect
contractual cash flows, nor within the business
model to hold both to collect contractual cash flows
and to sell financial assets.

(b) Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely

payments of principal and interest

Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows
and sell, the Bank assesses whether the financial
instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest (the “SPPI test”). In making this
assessment, the Bank considers whether the contractual
cash flows are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for
the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic
lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms
introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are
inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the
related financial asset is classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

Annual Report 2024 2 5
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(iii)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
() Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost

Financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised
cost if itis held for collection of contractual cash flows, where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Income from these financial assets is included in
interest income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other income together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or
loss.

Debt instruments measured at FVOCI

A debt financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

— itis held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial asset; and

—  its contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding.

Debt instruments classified at FVOCI are subject to the
expected credit losses requirements in accordance with IFRS
9. Interest earned whilst holding the financial assets is included
in interestincome.

At the reporting date, the Bank recognises unrealised fair value
gains and losses on revaluing these assets in OCl and presents
the cumulative gains and losses in investment revaluation
reserve within equity, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses, which are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. At maturity or upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss.
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(iv)

(vi)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
() Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Debt instruments measured at FVTPL

Debt instruments that do not meet the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI are measured at
FVTPL. At the reporting date, the Bank recognises realised and
unrealised gains and losses as trading income in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest earned while holding the assets is
included in the interestincome.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments held for trading are classified at FVTPL.
Equity instruments that are not held for trading are either
classified at FVTPL or FVOCI based on an irrevocable election
on initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis.

At the reporting date, realised and unrealised fair value gains
or losses on revaluing the equity instruments classified at
FVTPL are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Realised and unrealised fair value gains or losses on revaluing
the equity instruments classified at FVOCI are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Dividend earned whilst holding the equity instruments
classified at FVTPL is reported as dividend income in the
statement of profit or loss. Dividend from equity instruments
classified at FVOCI is recognised as dividend income in the
statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Reclassification

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition, except in the period when the Bank changes its
business model for managing its financial assets.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

©

Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

(vii) Derecognition — modification of financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Bank evaluates
whether the cash flows of the modified asset are substantially
different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset
are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised
at fair value.

(viii) Derecognition — other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or either (i) the Bank transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, or (ii) the Bank neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and the Bank has not retained control.

The Bank enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to
other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards. These transactions are accounted for as ‘pass
through’ transfers that result in derecognition if the Bank:

— has no obligation to make payments unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the assets;

— is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

— has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the
assets without material delay.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
where there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.



£)OCBC

B 75 R AR B AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 FESHHERBE 4

© SMEERSMEMSE(H)

)

MALTETIR
BMASTETEBR —EEA(ES)
ANTEAEMBEXITD ZTABRE

TETAR—TE/H ALAIK
BZHEAATIANRESRE K
ERBUBEINITETR - 974
TAARAZ—EEHNZH(E
ERADF c RITH TIRALITE
TRETESNEBRE:

TEEOTR(ERYBE R
EEANEIRBEANNEE:

- FEEHNARBETURAFEME
PR BEZHIABR:

- BRAPTETIAMKEREMN
o Bz B 2 B A A9 O A R R
AR IFZ AR o

AT TR A TEIE
HE ARFRELBIHA
A BRIETMBRAERRS
RERBRALHWIRN—H -

WMRIUTEEMTIAMELENRAT
BEW B RN T EBUR R %
PTETARSHEERYHAIA
WG EE AR T A BIBURR
FrefhEHEMME - KITIRES
FOUAETEEACHEREERA
ERAFENAFEEE (AT
BEY ) - fEm S EERTER
BN HEESTAE T AAE A
FERE -

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
() Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

)

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both the derivative and a
host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone
derivative. Derivatives may be embedded in another
contractual arrangement (a host contract). The Bank accounts
for an embedded derivative separately from the host contract
when:

the host contract is not an asset in the scope of IFRS 9;

—  the host contract is not itself carried at FVTPL;

— theterms of the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative if they were contained in a
separate contract; and

—  the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract.

Separated embedded derivatives are measured at fair value,
with all changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss unless
they form part of a qualifying cash flow or net investment
hedging relationship.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Bank designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities, or commitments (fair value
hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated
in this way provided certain criteria are met.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
() Financial assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

)

(xi)

Embedded derivatives (Continued)

The Bank documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items,
as well as its risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. The Bank also
documents the assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values of hedged items.

Fair value hedging
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and that qualify as fair value hedging instruments are recorded
in the statement of profit or loss, together with any changes in
the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that is attributable
to the hedged risk.

When fair value hedge accounting is applied to financial
instruments carried at amortised costs, the carrying values of
the hedged items are adjusted for changes in fair value that
are attributable to the risk being hedged with the derivative
instruments rather than carried at amortised cost, such carrying
value adjustment is recognised in the income statement
together with the changes in fair value of the hedging
derivatives.

If the hedge relationship is terminated, the fair value
adjustment to the hedged item continues to be reported as
part of the carrying value of the asset or liability and is
amortised to the statement of profit or loss as a yield
adjustment over the remaining maturity of the asset or liability.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(d) Fixed assets and depreciation

U

(i)

Bank premises that are held for the Bank’s administrative use
are stated in the statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being their fair values at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity by
professional qualified valuers to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the reporting date. Changes
arising on the revaluation are generally dealt with in equity
and are accumulated in the Bank premises revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
the statement of profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds
the amount held in the reserve in respect of that same
asset immediately prior to the revaluation; and

—  when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to
the statement of profit or loss to the extent that a deficit
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had
previously been charged to the statement of profit or
loss.

Bank premises that are not held for the Bank’s administrative
use and other fixed assets are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any (Note 2(0)).

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of fixed assets that
has already been recognised is added to the carrying amount
of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits,
in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance
of the existing asset, will flow to the enterprise. All other
subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which itis incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(d) Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

©

(i) (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed
assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated
Freehold buildings 50 years
Leasehold land and buildings 25t0 50 years
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 31010 years
Motor vehicles 5years
Software 3 years

(i) Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of fixed
assets and bank premises are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve
to retained profits and is not reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss.

Operating lease

Where the Bank has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to the statement of
profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(f)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Bank may take
possession of the collateral assets through court proceedings or
voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. In accordance
with the Bank’s accounting policy set outin Note 2(g), impairment
allowances for impaired loans and advances are maintained after
taking into account the net realisable value of the repossessed
assets. Repossessed assets continue to be treated as securities for
loans and advance. The Bank does not hold any repossessed assets
for its own use. Repossessed assets are recorded at the lower of
their carrying amount of the related loans and advances and fair
value less costs to sell at the date of exchange. They are not
depreciated or amortised.

Impairment of financial assets
Under IFRS 9, the Bank recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECL) with a forward-looking ECL model.

(i) Scope
Under IFRS 9, the expected loss model is applied to financial
assets classified at amortised cost or FVOCI, and certain off-
balance sheet loan commitments and financial guarantees
which were previously provided for under IAS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(g) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Expected credit losses impairment model

Under IFRS 9, credit loss allowances are measured on each
reporting date according to a three-stage expected credit
losses impairment model:

— Stage 1 - Oninitial recognition, expected credit losses
will be that resulting from default events that are possible
over the next 12 months (12-month ECL).

—  Stage 2 - Following a significant increase in credit risk of
the financial assets since its initial recognition, the credit
loss allowance will be that which results from all possible
default events over the expected life of the asset (Lifetime
ECL).

— Stage 3 — When a financial asset exhibits objective
evidence of impairment and is considered to be credit-
impaired, a loss allowance will be the full lifetime
expected credit losses.

Measurement
ECL are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. The
measurement of ECL reflects:

— an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

—  thetime value of money; and

— reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(ili) Measurement (Continued)
For financial instruments in-scoped for ECL:

financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the
reporting date: as the present value of all cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Bank expects to receive);

financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date: as the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows;

undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are
due to the Bank if the commitment is drawn down and
the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive; and

financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to
reimburse the holder less any amounts that the Bank
expects to recover.

The key inputs used in the measurement of ECL are:

Probability of default (PD) — This is an estimate of the
likelihood of default over a given time horizon;

Exposure at default (EAD) — This is an estimate of the
exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting
date, including repayments of principal and interest as
well as expected drawdowns on committed facilities;

Loss given default (LGD) — This is an estimate of the loss
arising on default. Itis based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due and those that the Bank
would expect to receive, including from any collateral.
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(iii) =& (#&) (iiiy Measurement (Continued)
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ECL for exposures in Stage 1are calculated by multiplying the
12-month PD by LGD and EAD. ECL for exposures in Stage 2 and
3 are calculated by multiplying lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.

Loans and bills receivables that are collectively assessed are
grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics such
as account loan type, industry, geographical location of the
borrower, collateral type and other relevant factors.

All key inputs (PD, LGD and EAD) used to estimate Stage 1and
Stage 2 expected credit losses are modelled based on four
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The four macroeconomic scenarios represent a most likely
“Baseline” outcome, and three other less likely “Upside”,
“Downside 1" and “Downside 2" scenarios. These scenarios are
probability-weighted and underlying key macroeconomic
assumptions are based on independent external and in-house
views. The assumptions are subject to regular management
reviews to reflect current economic situations.

Each macroeconomic scenario used in the expected credit
losses calculation includes a projection of all relevant
macroeconomic variables used in the models for the lifetime
period, reverting to long-run averages generally after 3to 5
years periods. Depending on their usage in the models,
macroeconomic variables are projected at a country or more
granular level which differ by portfolio. The primary
macroeconomic variables adopted are Gross Domestic
Product, Unemployment Rate, Property Price Index and
Interest Rate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ili) Measurement (Continued)

The definition of default used in the measurement of expected
credit losses is consistent with the definition of default used for
credit risk management purposes. The default definition has
been applied consistently to model the PD, LGD and EAD
throughout Bank’s expected credit loss calculations.

The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default by
assessing both quantitative and qualitative criteria such as days
past due and the terms of financial covenants. A default occurs
when the borrower or bond issuer is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Bank in full, without recourse by the Bank to
actions such as realising security (if any is held) or when the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Bank about
one or more of the following loss events which has an impact
on the future cash flows on the assets that can be estimated
reliably:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the borrower;

— disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)
(i)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to
the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to
the income statement.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL are the
maximum contractual period over which the Bank is exposed
to credit risk.

Financial assets are written off against their related impairment
allowances when all feasible recovery actions have been
exhausted or when the recovery prospects are considered
remote.

Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include (i) ceasing enforcement activity and (ii) where the
Bank’s recovery method is foreclosing on collateral and the
value of the collateral is such that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering in full.

The Bank has not used the low credit risk exemption for any
financial instruments in the year ended 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: same).

Movement between stages

Movements between Stage 1 and Stage 2 are based on
whether an instrument’s credit risk as at the reporting date has
increased significantly since its initial recognition.

In accordance with IFRS 9, financial assets are classified in
Stage 2 where there is a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, where the expected credit losses will be
measured using lifetime ECL.
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(9 EERME (&) (9) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
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The Bank considers both qualitative and quantitative
parameters in the assessment of whether this is a significant
increase in credit risk. These include the following:

(@ The Bank has established thresholds for significant
increases in credit risk based on a relative change in
lifetime PD relative to initial recognition.

(b) The Bank conducts qualitative assessment to ascertain if
there has been significant increase in credit risk.

(©) The Bank uses 30 days past due as an indication of
significant increase in credit risk.

Movements between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are based on
whether financial assets are credit-impaired as at the reporting
date. The determination of whether a financial asset is credit-
impaired under IFRS 9 will be based on objective evidence of
impairment.

The assessments for a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and credit impairment are performed
independently as at each reporting period. Assets can move
in both directions through the stages of the impairment
model. After a financial asset has migrated to Stage 2, if it is no
longer considered that credit risk has significantly increased
relative to initial recognition in a subsequent reporting period,
it will move back to Stage 1. A modification of the terms of a
financial asset that does not result in derecognition will result
in the financial asset being transferred out of Stage 3 if the
indicators of it being identified as credit-impaired is no longer
met and that the evidence for its transfer out of Stage 3 solely
relates to events such as up-to-date and timely payment
occurring in the subsequent periods.

If a modified financial asset results in derecognition, the new
financial asset will be recognised under Stage 1, unless it is
assessed to be credit-impaired at time of the modification.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with banks,
central banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid inter-bank placements and investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Balances of banks, central banks
and other financial institutions that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Bank’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purposes of the cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Bank.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plan
are recognised as expenses in the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
prior years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

1)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available,
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, the Bank has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities. The principle of offsetting usually applies to income
tax levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i) Financial guaranteesissued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (“the holder”) for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(k) Financial guaranteesissued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

M

(i)

Financial guaranteesissued (Continued)

Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to customers, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within other liabilities. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be
made.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the statement of profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with Note 2(k)(ii) if and when (1) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Bank under the
guarantee, and (2) the amount of that claim on the Bank is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried in other
liabilities in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation,
complaint or legal claim, arising as a result of a past event, itis
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that economic benefits will
flow to the Bank and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss as follows:

U

M

Interestincome

Effective interest rate

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial
instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired assets, the Bank estimates future cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument,
but not ECL. For purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
calculated using estimated future cash flows including ECL.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes
transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction cost
include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of a financial asset.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured on initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected
credit losses allowance.

The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any expected
credit losses allowance.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(I) Revenue recognition (Continued)

M

(i)

Interest income (Continued)

Calculation of interest income

The effective interest rate of a financial asset is calculated on
initial recognition of a financial asset. In calculating interest
income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired). The effective interest rate is revised as a result of
periodic re-estimation of cash flows of floating rate
instruments to reflect movements in market rates of interest.
The effective interest rate is also revised for fair value hedge
adjustments at the date amortisation of the hedge adjustment
begins.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interestincome is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts
to the gross basis.

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial
recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the asset. The calculation of interest income does not revert to
a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired,
see note 2(Q).

Fee and commissionincome

Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to
the effective interest rate on a financial asset or financial
liability are included in the effective interest rate.

Other fee and commission income — including account
servicing fees, investment management fees, sales
commission, placement fees and syndication fees — is
recognized as the related services are performed. If a loan
commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a
loan, then the related loan commitment fee is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the commitment period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

U

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(if) Feeand commissionincome (Continued)
A contract with a customer that results in a recognised financial
instrument in the Bank’s financial information may be partially
in the scope of IFRS 9 and partially in the scope of IFRS 15. If this
is the case, then the Bank first applies IFRS 9 to separate and
measure the part of the contract that is in the scope of IFRS 9
and then applies IFRS 15 to the residual.

Other fee and commission expenses relating mainly to
transaction and service fees which are expensed as the
services are received.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment is quoted
ex-dividend.

(iii)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into
Macau Patacas at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Macau Patacas at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Macau
Patacas using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(m) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included in net
realised and unrealised gains/losses on trading financial instruments
or financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or
loss. All other exchange differences relating to monetary items are
presented as gains/losses arising from dealing in foreign currencies
in the statement of profit or loss. Differences arising on translation of
equity securities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in reserves.

Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Bank if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Bank;
(i) has significant influence over the Bank; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Bank or the Bank’s parent.

(2) An entity is related to the Bank if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Bank are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other

entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(n)

(©)

Related parties (Continued)
(2) (Continued)
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Bank or an entity
related to the Bank;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1);

(vii) a person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provide key management personnel services to the Bank
or to the Bank’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount might
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Notes 16 and 29 contain information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to valuation of bank premises held for administrative use
and fair value of financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

@

(b)

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the Bank’s
provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Bank recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Fair value estimation

Fair value is derived from quoted market prices or valuation
techniques which maximise the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The fair values of
financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) are determined by using
valuation techniques. Where unobservable data inputs have a
significant impact on the value obtained from the valuation model,
such a financial instrument is initially recognised at the transaction
price, which is the best indicator of fair value. The difference
between the transaction price and the model value, commonly
referred to as “day one profit and loss” is not recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The timing of
recognition of the deferred day one profit and loss is determined
individually. It is amortised over the life of the transaction, released
when the instrument’s fair value can be determined using market
observable inputs, or when the transaction is derecognised.



£)OCBC

B 75 R AR B AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

3 EEEHATEREBR®

©

HEE X

BHEREX
AIBAENM N EESRTAERN
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3 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

©

Impairment losses

Expected credit losses

The Bank has the following types of financial instruments that are
subject to the expected credit losses model:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost,

financial assets measured at FVOCI, and

loan commitment and financial guarantee contract.

In determining whether the credit risk of the Bank’s financial
exposures has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Bank considers quantitative and qualitative information such as the
Bank’s historical credit assessment experience and available
forward-looking information. Expected credit losses (ECL) estimates
are based on probability-weighted forward-looking economic
scenarios. The parameters used in ECL measurement (probability of
default, loss given default and exposure at default) incorporates
forward-looking information. The determination of the forward-
looking economic scenarios and incorporation of forward-looking
information into ECL measurement requires management to
exercise judgement based on its assessment of current
macroeconomic conditions.

() Expected credit losses for non-credit-impaired financial
instruments
As of 31 December 2024, the forward-looking scenarios used
in the ECL model have been updated from those as of 31
December 2023 which reflects the latest available
macroeconomic view.

— Stage 1and 2 ECL are modelled based on a central
baseline forecast with its upper and lower bound to
represent forecasting ranges. However, the central
forecast with its upper/lower range may not factor in
significant emerging risks and macroeconomic events
that are expected but uncertain in terms of impact and
timing. Such events have the potential to trigger a
recession but are not adequately captured in existing
forecasts. Therefore, the Bank added an additional
scenario in the computation of ECL.
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C)

WEBX (&)

BHERB% (£)

2 EEEHEEDHTANEGE
V=EES
REARERRMES EEED
FET ST E AR BB E R
HET MM RERSRE I
EEBMBERTEERERER
MEHERGH - AL ESENH
MABREZEEH ARBREZE
2024 F 12 A3HMMEREE -

AITNTEEMERIBREM IS HRKE -

EEEENITE
RITHEEEEREBFHET A
MR® ESEMBERARRER
HEE AR SNEDE B AR ARF A
ARITH B E & E A A FHE R E
ERBEEMNER MRELETEE
IR R AR EETERE L
81| 5B AT R T VAIA R R S R ORRK -
AERREREEHAANEERE
ERIMARENTEER -
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3 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

©

C)

Impairment losses (Continued)
Expected credit losses (Continued)
(2) Expected credit losses for credit-impaired financial instruments

In respect of credit-impaired exposures, management
judgement and estimation are applied in, amongst others,
identifying impaired exposures, estimating the related
recoverable cash flows and where applicable, determining
collateral values and timing of realisation. Judgements and
assumptions in respect of these matters have been updated
to reflect the relevant information as of 31 December 2024.

The Bank’s expected credit losses is disclosed in Note 15.

Depreciation of fixed assets

The Bank makes estimate and assumptions over the useful lives of
fixed assets. At each statement of financial position date, both
internal and external sources of information are considered to
assess whether the estimated useful lives of fixed assets are
appropriate and relevant. If there has been a significant change in
the expected pattern of economic benefits for these fixed assets,
the depreciation methods should be changed to reflect the
changed pattern and such change should be accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate and the depreciation charge for the
current and future periods should be adjusted.



£)OCBC

B 75 R AR B AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 FEWA 4 Interestincome
2024 2023
FEM T TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
REBRNEEFE 2R BUW A Interestincome calculated using the effective
interest method:
—SEUARFEEFEHEEES — financial assets not measured at fair value
PABEZEREE through profit or loss 1,255,068 1,152,383
Hh A B A Other interest income:
- EERBEE — trading assets 3,553 18,617
1,258,621 1,171,000

LERBRESHREEZFERA BEH
HEEHZE204FRAIBILFE 2 EFRE
B HTHNE O] 2 ) 848 A 155,000 9702023

4:68,00032FF L) °

The above interest income from impaired financial assets includes
interest income on unwinding of discount on loan impairment losses of
MOP155,000 (2023: MOP68,000) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

5 FEXH 5 Interest expense
2024 2023
TP T FRMT
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEZHRE: Interest expense arising from:

—JELARFEBEFEAEESH — financial liabilities not measured at fair value
ATABRzZeRAE through profit or loss 627,856 546,580
-BEEMZARE — trading liabilities 6,724 9,725
634,580 556,305
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REERBEWAFRE 6 Netfee and commissionincome
2024 2023
FRM T TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
EBRTFRER Deposit related business 8,213 8,541
BB REK Loan related business 3,420 10,777
N ES Trade finance business 1,286 1,816
BHRGERARER Credit card related fee 23,599 24,565
BEEERKE Stock-broking fees 20,301 18,460
FEEREREE Wealth management fees 19,744 8,907
EmREmAe Other agency commissions 42,148 22171
HEtREE XA Other fees and commission income 2,862 3108
B REBERASIH Less: Fees and commission expenses (8,451) (8,062)
113,122 90,283

Hrp: Of which:
EFIEEERBIIETRT U Net fees and commission, other than amounts

ANFEEFAEBEZEBRTA included in determining the effective

FEAZ FREELFHS interest rate, arising from financial

RIEHEBBEA X 2 IR instruments that are not held for trading

nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss
—BR75E R Ee WA — fees and commission income 39,380 48,806
—REE &AM — fees and commission expense (8,451) (8,062)
30,929 40,744
2024F F 3§
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Hib i A 7 Otherincome
2024 2023
FREMT TR T
MOP’000 MOP’000
HNE B B I & Gains arising from dealing in foreign
currencies 12,254 14,235
o E & Hedging activities
— BB 2 E — Fair value hedges
—¥7HR1EH (K 5E24(b) —hedged items (Note 24 (b)) 6,099 38,246
—$ R T A (P 24(b)) - hedging instruments (Note 24 (b)) (5,610) (42,087)
—¥ R & ERATAR AR AR — Breaking cost for hedging
(B 5% 24(b)) (Note 24 (b)) 9,843 19,916
EERABEMIA BT Net losses from financial instruments held
(B 5 26(b)(i)) for trading (Note 26 (b)(i)) (9,308) (6,823)
BEEREGREERFEEZ Net unrealized losses transferred from
REBER investment revaluation reserve upon
disposal (6,825) (11,619)
BENAFEEFERHLE Net gains on disposal of financial assets
AAHRMEEAKEREERSR measured at fair value through other
EREE W= FE comprehensive income and trading
financial assets 8,826 8,066
REBTEEZBRFR Net losses on disposal of fixed assets (121) (235)
A Others 2,339 2,295
17,497 21,994
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EES W 8 Operating expenses
2024 2023
FRM T TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
FekEMEBRKRAN Salaries and other staff costs 214,151 208,992
RIRAE R B (M 5E28) Retirement benefit costs (Note 28) 14,765 16,121
228,916 22513
TEFEFEZITHERREI L Premises and equipment expense,
excluding depreciation 40,174 29,918
& (M5E16) Depreciation (Note 16) 23,505 23,466
KEHEBR Operating lease charges 3,735 3,895
% S Rh & A Auditors’ remuneration 928 1124
EHAth Others 70,674 85,980
367,932 369,496
BiE 9 Taxation

ARATHIE ST AR AR T8 MR E R TR AR X ©
NEAR B RIS R ABAEK - RIBR
PSR ARBAE ERBkamR
32,000% 9 7T 18 1€ 7 300,0008 P9 7T B - F¢
THIE3%E %M 2ER R K RET
12% BT R © 2024 F J 2023 FE BEITH
AT E - R B UK &5 58 5 A 600,00082
FI7T > Hig 2 WS 12% 0 E TR -F -

Tax expenses of the Bank comprise of current and deferred tax. Current
tax comprises of Macau complementary tax. According to the Macau
complementary tax law, tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from
3% to 9% on the taxable income above MOP32,000 but below
MOP300,000, and thereafter at a fixed rate at 12%. For the year 2024 and
2023, the special tax incentive is provided to effect that the tax free
income threshold is MOP600,000 and the profit thereafter being taxed
at a fixed rate of 12%.

2024 2023
FERMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
ARHAB IR Current taxation
— N [ TR — Charge for the year 27,930 46,845
—HP B TR — China income withholding tax 663 683
—TFE 2 BEEE — Over provision in respect of prior years (1,012) -
EERIE Deferred taxation
—UREERENEERED — Origination and reversal of temporary
difference (204) 510
REEHIB W Current year tax expenses 27,377 48,038
2024F F 3§
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BiIE (@) 9 Taxation (continued)
ARITZBRBAE ) 2 B IB AR A EARA The taxation on the Bank’s profit before taxation differs from the
TRLRFIFMS AR R EEEANIERE " theoretical amount that would arise using the Macau complementary tax
LUNNSIS rate applicable to profits of the Bank as follows:
2024 2023
FRMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
B 58 A1 A Profit before taxation 233,941 397,820
B1R2% T E AT EE (20234F 1 12%)  Tax calculated at 12% (2023: 12%) 28,073 47738
BEMENTE Effect of progressive tax rates 7) a7)
FERITH A HE b Special complementary tax incentive (55) (55)
AR IE 2 B R Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,160 749
FERTL 2 Wz Income not subject to tax (1,240) (1,240)
TEE 2 BEEE Over provision in respect of prior years (1,012) -
R B S TR AR China income withholding tax 663 683
EAth Others (195) 180
AFEEHETH Current year tax expenses 27,377 48,038
2 10 Dividends
202438280 - R K& IR 2 On 28 March 2024, the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) approved an
20234F [¥ % 2. /4228,000,0003 9 7T (2023: appropriation of dividend of MOP228,000,000 attributable to 2023 (2023:
R3S 2 20225 E % 2. £182,400,00052F97T) ° MOP182,400,000 attributable to 2022). The dividend was paid during
fi% B 522024 F R E o 2024.
EEREEAME 11 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
2024 2023
FRMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
R Fees 145 206
E b B <& Other emoluments 6,109 6,094
6,254 6,300
ARATH AR L E F A R B QR R E Certain directors of the Bank received remuneration from group
MZE R R B EHEAIT companies but no allocation has been made to the Bank.
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BERFHRITEAZERPRE
TR

12

Cash and balances with banks and central banks

2024 2023

FERMT TR

MOP’000 MOP’000

& ek Cash balances 326,231 527,741

TP RIBITHRIEA () Balances with central banks (Note) 519,198 595,832

FRRITRIZE RIB Balances with banks 143,609 141,518
TEEEREX (%1 & FE2REER) Expected credit losses (Stages 1and 2)

(K3E15) (Note 15) (65) (38)
988,973 1,265,053

ME:RBEEEER ATAERNRMSERZ R
BEERBEAMERBDESRE ZERERE
ESRSBETHERE T AL XY E—EM
ZEANSRY B ZFHERAEMTEHZ
#AN 2 70%

@ MEFERAEGEZ3I%:

by Z=EAUT(RE=ER)EREAEEZ2%:
Bt AQ@MARBRKRIN: &

(© Z=EANELAEZEARBEZ1%.

R2024F12A31H AITRBEMFIEERZ &
K 12 3% 58 /5 445,257,000)2 P9 7T (2023 %12
A 318 : 401,317,000 37T ) o

EERAREE
TE%‘%EFI%H@TEMQIEZE

FEE - HH7,956,000/2 F'%ra(2023¢12ﬂ
318 :6,114,0002 L) A B H BT K
ZHER o

2024F F 8,

13

Note: According to the statutory requirement, the Bank is required to maintain a
minimum deposit balance with AMCM for liquidity purpose. The required weekly
average of the MOP current deposit balance should not be less than 70% of the
sum of the following percentage of the average of the basic liabilities classified
by term and calculated in the preceding week:

(@) 3% onall the liabilities which are repayable on demand;

(b) 2% on all the liabilities which are repayable within 3 months (3 months
inclusive) except for those already counted in (a); and

(©) 1% on all the liabilities which are repayable beyond 3 months.

As at 31 December 2024, the amount of minimum statutory deposit
balance with AMCM required for the Bank is MOP445,257,000 (31
December 2023: MOP401,317,000).

Trading assets

Trading assets represent positive fair values of derivative financial
instruments, of which MOP7,956,000 (31 December 2023: MOP6,114,000)
were balances with the immediate holding company.
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@

14 Advances to customers and other accounts

EFERKHMMIRE (@) Advances to customers and other accounts
2024 2023
FERMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
REBERAE Gross advances to customers 17,559,613 19,555,862
FBHEAEKR (BIRF2MEE) Expected credit losses (Stages 1and 2)

(Bff5E15) (Note 15) (198,649) (29,807)
TEHIE B R (B3RE) Expected credit losses (Stage 3)

(M 3E15) (Note 15) (3,502) (3,574)
BEFEFHERE Net advances to customers 17,357,462 19,522,481
EREFAR (H7F23a) Customer liability under acceptances

(Note 23 (3)) 12,285 25,940
BES R ZTESMTAEZ Derivative financial instruments held for

FERAFEE hedging 9,667 15,188
HhBRIA Other accounts 108,697 138,987
HEMiRE 2 BHERAEX Expected credit losses (Stage 1) for other

(1R ER) ([T 7E15) accounts (Note 15) ) M

17,488,110 19,702,595
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EFERREMIRE &) 14 Advances to customers and other accounts

(b) BITEDBENEFER
BEPERZITERRIRRZEFERZ
RED R RABBEEMERERERX -
ARTEVERETFERRAME
HIERBXL (FIFR) -

(Continued)

(b) Advances to customers analysed by industry sectors
The information concerning advances to customers by industry
sectors is prepared by classifying the advances according to the
usage of the advances and is stated gross of any expected credit
losses. Impaired advances to customers and the related expected
credit losses (stage 3) are also presented.

2024 2023
REGREX REERRX
RFERAE FERFEXR  (H3BR) ZPENEE REEZPER  (E3ER)
Gross Impaired Expected Gross Impaired Expected
advancesto  advancesto  creditlosses  advancesto  advancesto  creditlosses
customers customers (Stage3) customers customers (Stage 3)

TEMAR TEMAR TEMR TR TEMR TN
MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000

g% Manufacturing industries 110,228 - - 144,945 - -
BERALTR Construction and public works 1,423,385 - - 1779,885 - -
B9 (BERTE) Wholesale and retail trade 255,281 - - 360,987 - -
EE BEREBRITE Restaurants, hotels and similar 551,305 - - 593,602 - -
B RRREA Transport, warehouse and communications 64,199 - - 75,875 - -
B (FERTT) Non-monetary financial institutions 138,182 - - 173,933 - -
B% Gaming - - - 71940 - -
45 Education 2,212 - - 2419 - -
BB Information technology 4,936 - - 5539 - -
Efhfr% Other industries 1,899,357 - - 2,276,885 - -
EINELS Personal loans 13,110,468 91,274 3,502 14,069,792 117,066 3574

17,559,613 91,274 3,502 19,555,862 117,066 3,574

R 2024 F12 B31H K& 2023F12 A3IH 2
EHEREAREFPEFRERLR
Mgl v 8t BR RETEK
E B -

2024F F 8,

The expected credit losses and impairment made for advances to
customers as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 is
defined and accounted for in accordance with Note 2(g).
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( BEZEFERX

BMEZEPERER EEMmmE
RIEHERER (B3R AT T:

14 Advances to customers and other accounts

(Continued)
() Impaired advances to customers

The gross impaired advances to customers, market value of
collaterals held with respect to such advances and expected credit

losses stage 3 impairment allowances are as follows:

2024 2023
FRMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
BEZEFERARE Gross impaired advances to customers 91,274 117,066
HEFFPEREBIEETFPER  Grossimpaired advances to customers
BEZBEDL as a percentage of total advances
to customers 0.52% 0.60%
HERFERZEKFRTE Market value of collateral held with respect
to impaired advances to customers 87,772 13,491
TEEE B K (B3R ER) Expected credit losses (Stage 3) 3,502 3,574

BEZEPEREX BRI AR
EERHBRENZEBREZRR -5
BREA PN Pk
FHERRERENFGHEZERERE
MZzERmEIERR

K(FEIHER)
YER

72024 %12 A318 K 2023F12 A31H -
ARTEFRITRAEZREFR - W ER
TN 4R B R 7R

B2 RTAEER
E11Z A K (B3R -

d) BEEE

72024512 A318 K 2023F12 A31H -

RITRBEFBEMBEEE

held mainly comprised properties.

2024 and 31 December 2023.

(d) Repossessed assets

any repossessed assets.

Impaired advances to customers are individually assessed loans
with objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.
Individually assessed expected credit losses (Stage 3) was made
after taking into account the net present value of future recoverable
amounts in respect of such loans and advances, and the collaterals

There are no impaired advances to banks nor expected credit
losses (Stage 3) made on advances to banks as at 31 December

At 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the Bank did not hold
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FEHEREBEX 15 Expected credit losses
(@) BHERBINHER (@) Reconciliation of expected credit losses
£ )
F2RER
FIRE  F2RE Mt BIRER @t
Stages1
and2
Stagel Stage 2 Sub-total Stage 3 Total
TEMA FTRMAx FTRMAxT FERAT  FEAR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
H2024F1A18 As at 1January 2024 26,282 7,013 33,295 3,574 36,869
HEIMIA Transfers of financial instruments
~REIEREEH2MEE ~ transfers from Stage 1to Stage 2 (9,243) 9,243 - - -
—REIREEEEIEE ~ transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1 12,043 (12,043) - - -
—HEEIRE ~ transfers to Stage 3 @ (743) (747) 741 -
-BEEIRR ~ transfers from Stage 3 260 1,051 1,311 (1,31) -
BHBRBAIEREEY  Changesin PDs/LGDs/EADs/
RO, Al R 2 & forward-looking assumptions 977 168,577 169,554 2,360 17,914
FrERmiemEE - E8%  Newfinancial assets originated,
E—FHER repayments and further lending 2,999 (2,125) 874 (2,565) (1,691)
B ERBXTHER Unwind of discount of expected credit
(KizE4) losses (Note 4) - - - (155) (155)
WEFFEMBRZER Recoveries of advances written off in
prior years - - - 2,536 2,536
MR Amounts written off - - - (1,684) (1,684)
B 28 I Efh 5 & Exchange adjustments and
other movements (309) (146) (455) - (455)
R2024F12 A31H At 31 December 2024 33,005 170,827 203,832 3,502 207,334
BETHSBNHEREAEBEAR: Representing expected credit losses for:
FHERITRIZE M8 (F7£12)  Balances and placement with banks
(Note 12) 19 46 65 - 65
BPEH (Mi14@) Advances to customers (Note 14(a)) 29,034 169,615 198,649 3,502 202,151
H A BRIE (P 51 14(2)) Other accounts (Note 14(a)) 1 - 1 - 1
SR BERALNEEEE Contingent liabilities and commitments
(B3zE2n to extend credit (Note 21) 2,078 1,156 3,234 - 3,234
AT EBEFEBEEZEHA  Financial assets measured at fair value
Hih2mRBE 2 eRmEE through other comprehensive income 1,873 10 1,883 - 1,883
R 2024F12 A318 As at 31 December 2024 33,005 170,827 203,832 3,502 207,334

2024F F 8,
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@

15 Expected credit losses (continued)

EHERBANHEE (&) (@) Reconciliation of expected credit losses (Continued)
1k
H2MER
1R E2MEER NEE O BIWRER st
Stages 1
and 2
Stage 1 Stage 2 Sub-total Stage 3 Total
FRMAT  FTRMAT  FRMT FRMAT FRMT
MOP000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP’000
R2023F1A18 As at 1 January 2023 28,265 26,915 55,180 4,989 60,169
BEIMIA Transfers of financial instruments
~REIBREEE2MEE — transfers from Stage 1to Stage 2 (1,824) 1,824 - - -
—RE2RBREEFIRER ~ transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1 19,937 (19.937) - - -
—BEEIME — transfers to Stage 3 (177) (1,799) (1976) 1,976 -
—HEFEIRR - transfers from Stage 3 1,105 291 1,396 (1,396) -
BHOBRBHIEKREEY  Changesin PDs/LGDs/EADs/
BB O ATRE MR 2 forward-looking assumptions (23,886) (803) (24,689) 15 (24,674)
FTEMsemEE B2 %  Newfinancial assets originated,
E—FHER repayments and further lending 2,841 496 3,337 (1,883) 1454
EHERELTNER Unwind of discount of expected credit
(KizE4) losses (Note 4) - - - (68) (68)
WEFFEMBRZER Recoveries of advances written off in
prior years - - - 1,318 1,318
MR Amounts written off - - - (1377) (1377)
ERARREMEES Exchange adjustments and
other movements 21 26 47 - 47
R2023E12 A31H At 31 December 2023 26,282 7,013 33,295 3,574 36,869
BETHSBENHEREAEBER: Representing expected credit losses for:
FHERITRZEMZE (H3E12)  Balances and placement with banks
(Note 12) 38 - 38 - 38
EPEH (Mi14@) Advances to customers (Note 14(a)) 23,281 6,526 29,807 3574 33,381
H A BRIE (P 51 14(a)) Other accounts (Note 14(a)) 1 - 1 - 1
KRB ERALNEEEE Contingent liabilities and commitments
(Pt 3£ 21) to extend credit (Note 21) 1743 277 2,020 - 2,020
AT EBEFEBEEZEHA  Financial assets measured at fair value
H2mlazemEE through other comprehensive income 1,219 210 1429 - 1429
7202312 4318 As at 31 December 2023 26,282 7013 33,295 3,574 36,869
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15 FEHEREX @) 15 Expected credit losses (continueq)
(b) eRIEENEHERAX (b) Expected credit losses on financial assets
TRIWTKTEMEENEMEE 2 The following tables set out information on the credit quality of
HHx - financial assets and other liabilities.
2024
FIHER F2RE HIRE w@st
Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FHEMT TR TEMT FHEMT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

e R HRTRERE Cash and balances with and loans and
AR EBRITHERMB K advances to banks

| Pass 968,037 21,001 - 989,038

A EHERER Less: Expected credit losses (19) (46) - (65)
968,018 20,955 - 988,973

EFERNBHK Loans and advances to customers

EFEHE Pass 13,263,539 3,026,947 - 16,290,486

FhEgd Special mention - 1,177,853 - 1,177,853

R Substandard - - 58,776 58,776

AIEEE Doubtful - - 14,502 14,502

BEE Loss - - 17,996 17,996

A EHERER Less: Expected credit losses (29,034) (169,615) (3,502) (202,151

13,234,505 4,035,185 8,772 17,357,462
AAFEEFEREEEHFA  Financial assets measured at fair value
H2HERENEREE through other comprehensive income
FEH Pass 10,536,925 15,197 - 10,552,122
EHEREX Expected credit losses (1,873) (10) - (1,883)
10,535,052 15,187 - 10,550,239

Hi iR Other accounts

N Pass 108,697 - - 108,697

REEREX Less: Expected credit losses 0] - - m
108,696 - - 108,696

RARBBERAENEEEE Contingent liabilities and commitments to

extend credit
EFHE Pass 2,771,449 183,447 - 2,954,896
BHERBX Expected credit losses (2,078) (1,156) - (3,234)
2,769,371 182,291 - 2,951,662
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15 EHEREX #)

(b) EMEENFARERBE(A)
TRINRTEMEEMEMEBE 2F

15 Expected credit losses (continued)

(b) Expected credit losses on financial assets (Continued)
The following tables set out information on the credit quality of

BHEE o financial assets and other liabilities.
2023
FIRER FMEE FIME FEH
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FRMT FRMT FRMT FRMT
MOP000 MOP’000 MOP'000 MOP’000
Be REFMRETRERE Cash and balances with and loans and
AR EBRITRHE KRB K advances to banks
N Pass 1,265,091 - - 1,265,091
W TEEEREX Less: Expected credit losses (38) - - (38)
1,265,053 - - 1,265,053
REFERNBHK Loans and advances to customers
EFHE Pass 17,556,477 1,814,710 - 19,371,187
Eha Special mention - 67,610 - 67610
R Substandard - - 89,467 89,467
AEEE Doubtful - - 9,457 9,457
BEE Loss - - 18,141 18,141
A EHERER Less: Expected credit losses (23,281) (6,526) (3,574) (33,381)
17,533,196 1,875,794 113,491 19,522,481
AAFEEFEEEEEHFA  Financial assets measured at fair value
H2HERENeREE through other comprehensive income
FEH Pass 8,809,383 58,862 - 8,868,245
BREEREX Expected credit losses (1,219) (210) - (1429)
8,808,164 58,652 - 8,866,816
Hi iR Other accounts
g Pass 138,987 - - 138,987
BHEREX Less: Expected credit losses 0) - - 0]
138,986 - - 138,986
RARBBERAENEEEE Contingent liabilities and commitments to
extend credit
EFE Pass 2,461,055 100,283 - 2,561,338
EHEREX Expected credit losses (1,743) @77) - (2,020)
2,459,312 100,006 - 2,559,318
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EE&E 16 Fixed assets
B 15
HATTHE RERER &t
Furniture, fixtures,
equipment,
motor vehicles
Bank premises and software Total
TRMAR FRMRT FRMAR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
BASME: At cost or valuation:
2024 F1R1HEH As at1January 2024 591,921 209,533 801,454
NE Additions 44 8,828 8,872
fRE Disposals - (17,568) (17,568)
Xy Deficit on revaluation (116,363) - (16,363)
BHERBITIL B35 E Elimination of accumulated depreciation on
revalued bank premises (8,341) - (8,341)
202412 A3 B4 5 As at 31 December 2024 467,261 200,793 668,054
I E: Accumulated depreciation:
04F1R10ES Asat 1 January 2024 52,557 175,783 228,340
MR Charge for the year 10,365 13,140 23,505
R E R Written back on disposals - (17,390) (17,390)
HEEMBRTTE 2 RHE Elimination of accumulated depreciation on
revalued bank premises (8,341) - (8,341)
202412 A31B 5 As at 31 December 2024 54,581 171,533 226,114
2024 F 2 AEEEFE Net book value as at 31 December 2024 412,680 29,260 441,940
BASMEE: Atcost or valuation:
2023 F 1 A1E &8 As at 1January 2023 611,350 203,510 814,860
NE Additions 53 15,833 15,886
RE Disposals - (9,810) (9,810)
BiRER Deficit on revaluation (10,228) - (10,228
BEERBOTTL 2 RETNE Elimination of accumulated depreciation on
revalued bank premises (9,254) - (9,254)
2023 F 12 A31RE % As at 31 December 2023 591,921 209,533 801,454
ZEtiE: Accumulated depreciation:
2023 F1A1B &6 As at1January 2023 50,534 173,169 223,703
HRR Charge for the year 1,277 12189 23,466
RE MR Written back on disposals - (9,575) (9,575)
BHEGRTTIEZ RFHE Elimination of accumulated depreciation on
revalued bank premises (9,254) - (9,254)
WBFRASARS | AsatdlDecember202s S L. S 28340
2023F 12 A3 HEHEFE Net book value as at 31 December 2023 539,364 33,750 573,114
2024F F 3§
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16 BIEEE %)
i 5 E1T B R R MR AT 1T 4 - 7R 20244
2ABE R BB ERMIT KA ITER

RARR

A& MA2023E12 A31HAIH

B ERTTR B (B BRARIER
HAMETRBEBNEMEENHNEREE
B MESEMENAEBEMERN SR
RTHEEEER -

@ MELTEEFE

@

HE2024F12ANBILFE » KT
U FTSRETHASR/RITIT
iF 7 & {4 5 48 /2116,363,000 % 9
JC + 0Bk I IE 4 513,964,000 2
JLROBFRAIE: EFEE A
10,228,000 P97t « 1R R TR 1B
1,22700002F97T) - EER R
PR WERTITUBERHE
PR

BEARTEETHAR ZBITITHE
AR AR A BAHITEARR - B8R
M & R2024F12A310 E &
35,784,000 F97T(2023512 4318 :
36,994,000/8F97T) °

16 Fixed assets (continued)
All of the bank premises held for administrative use were revalued by an
independent firm of surveyors, RHL Appraisal Limited as at 31 December
2024 and Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited as at 31 December
2023, who have among their staff, fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, with recent experience in the location and category of
properties being valued.

(@) Fairvalue measurement of properties

(i) The deficit on revaluation on bank premises held for
administrative use of MOPI116,363,000 net of deferred tax of
MOP13,964,000 for the year ended of 31 December 2024
(2023: the deficit on revaluation on bank premises held for
administrative use of MOP10,228,000 net of deferred tax of
MOP1,227,000) have been recognised in equity and
accumulated in the bank premises revaluation reserve.

(i) The carrying amount of the bank premises held for
administrative use would have been MOP35,784,000 as at 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023: MOP36,994,000) had
they been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

(b) SBITTHZREFEMT: (b) The netbook value of bank premises is as follows:
2024 2023
FERMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
TERPT 2 KA SR T M Freehold land in Macau 160,243 230,171
FERF 2L L1 Leasehold land in Macau 252,437 309,193
412,680 539,364
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17 RITRAEFRR LR 17 Deposits and balances of banks
2024 2023
FREMT TR T
MOP’000 MOP’000
HRITR 7 R KA Deposits and balances of banks 20,061 -

18 EFEH - 8 - #ENKHM 18 Current, fixed, savings and other deposits of

=N customers
2024 2023
FREM T TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
REBHEK A2 At amortised cost
—EHER P — Current accounts 3,702,114 2,467,875
—HETK - Savings deposits 9,554,256 8,937,000
—E B R b 3K — Fixed and other deposits 13,430,416 11,053,407
—REBAFEEL HEFTZEE - Fixed and other deposits, with fair
K H AT 5K value hedge accounting 263,495 2,048,840
26,950,281 24,507,122
19 EERARAE 19 Trading liabilities
EEAREBEFEATTEASMTAZAN Trading liabilities represent negative fair values of derivative financial
SEEE - E 519100052 9T (2023412 A instruments, of which MOP5,191,000 (31 December 2023: MOPS5,251,000)
318 :5,251,00008 P9 7L) A EELER AR were balances with the ultimate holding company and immediate
NEBERAR &% - holding company.
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0 EIERRERELEHEAEE
BRI R R AN FE AT AR IE AR P AT
1848 75 Bt 2 8 #45 27,778,00038 P9 7T ( 2023 4F
12 A31H : 47849,00008FF7T) -

RERTABREENAAMBIEE EE
ARG IR A E MR E K S M IAER —
BHEREANR EERBREERAER
TEHIESY - EEHMBMT:

DR ZELENAERE:

20 Current tax payable and deferred tax liabilities
Current income tax payable of MOP27,778,000 (31 December 2023:
MOP47,849,000) in the statement of financial position represents the
provision for Macau Complementary Tax for the year.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

Deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets recognised:

ERUAFEE
FERARZEH
AARMBEE A By
W ERMEE EREX W|ATITHE Gl

Revaluation of
financial assets

measured
atfair value
through other Revaluation
comprehensive Expected of bank
income  creditlosses premises Total
FEMT FERMT TRMT TEMT

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

EXERIBRE: Deferred tax arising from:

202312 A31ALH At1January 2024 (115,810) (510) (50,118) (166,438)
B & MR Credited to profit or loss - 892 - 892

& {8 M Charged to reserves 13,881 - 14,814 28,695

2024512 3B EH At 31 December 2024 (101,929) 382 (35,304) (136,851)
202341 1AL At1January 2023 (153,121) - (52,306) (205,427)
BaRAME Charged to profit or loss - (510) - (510)
& {8 O Charged to reserves 3731 - 2188 39,499

2023512 A31E &S At 31 December 2023 (115,810) (510) (50,118) (166,438)
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21 HhAREREH 21 Other accounts and provisions
2024 2023
FRMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
Z ey Acceptances outstanding 12,285 25,940
BEEENETER Provisions for liabilities and accrued charges 87,270 85,656
BESSZTEEMTAEZ Derivative financial instruments held for
BRFEE M) hedging (Note) 5,119 6,084
KE Cashier order 33,985 40,223
HihafE Other liabilities 188,351 307,392
IARBENREBANEREREZ Expected credit losses on contingent
TEHA{E A1 K (BT EE15) liabilities and commitments to
extend credit (Note 15) 3,234 2,020
330,244 467,315
Wik R AFEEBERARNITESRMIAZ Note: The balance represents negative fair values of derivative financial instruments, all
BRAFEME(2023F12A318 : HR) ° of which were held with the immediate holding company (31 December 2023:
same).
22 RAREE 22 Share capital and reserves
(@ B’x (@) Share capital
2024 2023
FEM T TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
T R B W A A Authorised, issued and fully paid:
1,200,000 i 7 3@ M A% 300 1,200,000 ordinary shares of MOP300
SEPI7T (2023 4F 1 100729 7T) (2023: MOP100) each 360,000 120,000
2024 F3H28H - lRER AL HE KL On 28 March 2024, the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”) approved
BIREERERI00EPI T INEFRK the resolution to increase the face value of ordinary share from
300)RPITTHIA - R D B EIRE MOPI00 to MOP300 per share while the number of shares
#$1,200,000 (% ° %8 4\ #7240,000,000,2 remained unchanged at 1,200,000. The additional share capital of
FITTIRAE N B RFEARAE I MOP240,000,000 was transferred from unappropriated profits to
REPI DB ARRER o share capital and distributed proportionally among the

shareholders.
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22 RAER
(b) it
)

(iii)

e e

—RE#E
—REFHERAERETFERKILYL
J& R R o

EERE
VETE R 1R 313/2023 57 )5 < 570
R KR PR R BN B A3215 2 R
FEPKIL o

RESEMHHE
REERFRHEREESRILER
ZARFEEFEEEZEHFTA
HipzE s mEE /A
EEMEE LRI DAEERZD -
REEGLFELICERZAE
I & AR E e

SBATTUEERE
RITTUHEHRBEREBRERE
FAFEEERIERZRITITUR
SRARBEED - RITITUER
RHBLIFECERZNE  LBET
AR o

EERE

BRAESRTE AE R IB R AN - ANTTIR
& & B 5 012/2021-AMCM 35 &
ETHTERLEETHE MR
MRS ERZBREEEE R &
ERECEDKEERBBHRE
e B - 12202412 A318
—REEERESREATRIT(2023
12 A31H :167,009,00038F5 7T) -
HEEEHEHREATRMT -

22 Share capital and reserves (continued)

(b)

Reserves

()

(i)

(iii)

General reserve
The general reserve was set up from the transfer of
unappropriated profits and is available for distribution.

Legalreserve
Legal reserve was set up in accordance with Article 70 of Law
No 13/2023 and Article 432 of the Macau Commercial Code.

Investment revaluation reserve

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
changes in the fair value of those financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income until the
assets are derecognised. It does not represent realised profits
and is not available for distribution.

Bank premises revaluation reserve

Bank premises revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of bank premises under the
revaluation model until the assets are derecognised. It does
not represent realised profits and is not available for
distribution.

Regulatory reserve

Regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
the AMCM for prudential supervision purposes in addition to
expected credit losses recognised in accordance with AMCM
Guideline Notice 012/2021-AMCM. Movements in the
regulatory reserve are appropriated directly through
unappropriated profits. As at 31 December 2024, the balance
was nil for general regulatory reserve (31 December 2023:
MOP 167,009,000) and nil for specific regulatory reserve.
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23 FARBEHRAIE

@

70

23 Contingent liabilities and commitments

FAREERREUEREE (@) Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit
SAEHERAEEANRBEERE Contingent liabilities and commitments arises from forward asset
REREFES KBRS FHEH purchases, amounts owing on partly paid-up shares and securities,
T BRRECEELNEIHMARS forward deposits placed, asset sales or other transactions with
UREEBBHIA BERNRHEE recourse, as well as credit-related instruments which include, letters
EMERBZ BEREERE SYEEE of credit, guarantees and commitments to extend credit. The risk
BRATEMPR 2R KRR H# involved in these credit instruments is essentially the same as the
EETEPALRZEERBAER - credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The
ATE S IYER WS KRR contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk should the
EPEARMAIR 2EREEE - AR contract be fully drawn upon and the client defaults. Since a
RESDYER RAETERIE 2 8Bm 1E5 significant portion of guarantees and commitments is expected to
TEWRI AN REBHITIRE expire without being drawn upon, the total of the contract amounts
RRZBEEHRE ° is not representative of future cash flows.
HECERBRNMESEREREER The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted
BEEON01558 2 R E - FTA 2Rk amounts range from 0% to 100% in accordance with AMCM
INHES F-0% E100%° Guideline Notice 011/2015-AMCM.
AT ASEEKRER 2 kA E R The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
ECHOTESERE: significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:
2024 2023

FEMT TR

MOP’000 MOP’000
EEREEEBRIER Direct credit substitutes - 33,573
RPBE A ET Transaction-related contingencies 72,581 53,334
B BB NG Trade-related contingencies 3,272 6,396
Hofth o Other commitments
—RAERIFIA £ — With an original maturity over 1year 1,139,369 571,182
— Al AR EUH — Which are unconditionally cancellable 1,739,674 1,896,853
a5t Total 2,954,896 2,561,338
FEERBINESRE Credit risk weighted amount 609,085 352,297
MR2024F12A3H R H X F A& As at 31 December 2024, the amount of customer liability under
12,285,00032 P9 7T (202312 4318 acceptances is MOP12,285,000 (31 December 2023:
25,940,00002 9 ) E B IEE E b BR 1B MOP25,940,000) which has been included as acceptance
W E G g R (M EE14@) © outstanding under “Other accounts” (Note 14(a)).
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23 FARBEBHRREAE 2
(b) EAREE

©

RBEBRTEEML REMBHRERP
TER R 2 B AFE T

23 Contingent liabilities and commitments continued)

Capital commitments
Capital commitments for acquisition of fixed assets outstanding not
provided for in the financial report are as follows:

2024 2023

FREMT TR

MOP’000 MOP’000

B RERITEHN X Expenditure authorised and contracted for 22,964 9,509

REHEEAE

REBETATHENLEEE RR&E
NSRRI T:

Operating lease commitments

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for properties and equipment are payable as
follows:

2024 2023

FERMT TR

MOP’000 MOP’000

1FER Within one year 2,422 3,030
1A EBBFR After one year but within five years 1,612 2,541
4,034 5,571

RITNEL2HERAHAZEYEM
i o HEFH—RIEIE55(2023:
HE) - BRI BELOEEMIERA
F# o AN T EIRRAEE (2023
HE) -

The Bank leases a number of properties and equipment under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one
to five years (2023: same). None of the leases includes contingent
rentals (2023: same).
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72

fTE€mI A
STHETAREMEAY  EEEBTRSR
) — TS IR K E RIS BT o

TE SR TATIREARITEIMNE - FIX R
BEEMSAMETIER Bk H%
RHMESE °

EREENABEEREFAEY R T4
R TATFAREERNTAS 2 T5AE
ROTPIAZ EE2TETEEMERERSL)
TERGIIMTETA - EGHTE 1AL
BOARHIEERELE MAR -

BETAZEESRERBREA R AT
258 UTKRREBREHE -

(i) fTEIRE>E%¢E

24 Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on the
value of one or more underlying assets or indices.

Derivative financial instruments arise from forward, swap and option
transactions undertaken by the Bank in the foreign exchange, interest
rate and equity markets.

Derivative financial instruments are also used to manage the Bank’s own
exposures to market risk as part of its asset and liability management
process. The principal derivative instruments used by the Bank are
interest and foreign exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily
over-the-counter derivatives. For accounting purposes, derivatives are
classified as held for trading or held for hedging.

The notional amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding at the reporting date and do not represent

amounts at risk.

(i) Notional amounts of derivatives

2024
HeERE Hith &%
#HHEgs BEEEAR a5
Qualifying Others,
forhedge including held
accounting fortrading Total
FEM T FEM T FREMT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
fERE4L Exchange rate contracts
—1= 5f - Swaps - 1,494,255 1,494,255
—B A\ HAHE — Options purchased - 5,058 5,058
—Jh S HA — Options written - 5,058 5,058
MEFHELD Interest rate swap contracts 2,244,356 - 2,244,356
A% = 8 & %Y Equity contracts
—BE A HAHE - Options purchased - 654 654
—i AR — Options written - 654 654
2,244,356 1,505,679 3,750,035
2024F F 3§
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24 fTEE®M T H (»)

(M)

@

24 Derivatives financial instruments (continued)

PTEIRAZERSE (&) (i) Notional amounts of derivatives (Continued)
2023

e EBIE Eth - BFE
Hrgst SBEEERR &5t

Qualifying Others,

for hedge including held
accounting for trading Total
FIRFIT TR TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

EEREH Exchange rate contracts

—i=H — Forwards - 104 104
—¥5 B — Swaps - 120,295 120,295
—BE A HAHE — Options purchased - 2,186 2,186
—oh B — Options written - 2,186 2,186
FERBHED Interest rate swap contracts 3,196,781 1,047,614 4,244,395
3,196,781 1,072,385 4,369,166

REMBE D ZITETAZERSE @)
TRARTITELANRBREANESE

T REFKIMANSNT - 1
TAZEZESHEENHMEHERTK

ZX5E UMK KREREHE -

Notional amounts of derivatives by maturity
The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of
derivatives of the Bank by relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining periods to settlement at the reporting date. The notional
amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume of outstanding
transactions at the reporting date and do not represent amounts at

risk.
2024
10k
1R B5F R 5L At
Over one year
Within but within Over
one year five years five years Total
FEMT FREM T FRMT FREMT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
EXELD Exchange rate contracts
—f B - Swaps 1,494,255 - - 1,494,255
—RB A H i — Options purchased 5,058 - - 5,058
—h L AR — Options written 5,058 - - 5,058
FZIBE AL Interest rate swap contracts 746,863 1,497,493 - 2,244,356
REHBEH Equity contracts
— B A Hp#E — Options purchased 654 - - 654
—iy i HA 4 — Options written 654 - - 654
2,252,542 1,497,493 - 3,750,035
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74

@

(b)

RAAMBEAPZTETAZRRSBE (&)

24 Derivatives financial instruments (continued)
(@) Notional amounts of derivatives by maturity (Continued)

2023
15 E
1R B5F A 5L E a5t
Over one year
Within but within Over
one year five years five years Total
TR TR FEFT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
EEREH Exchange rate contracts
—i=H - Forwards 104 - - 104
—}= B - Swaps 120,295 - - 120,295
—iE A H — Options purchased 2,186 - - 2,186
—ih B A - Options written 2,186 - - 2,186
PSRRIy Interest rate swap contracts 3,537,785 706,610 - 4,244,395
3,662,556 706,610 - 4,369,166
ATEEZEH® (b) Fairvalue hedges

AFEBEZHFITERSHERIEE -
MR RARMGIEFEE T EEED
NEEREE TS RN EmMEmES -
2024 F12A318 HERAFEEY
FHPTETANFARAFEEA
4,548,00002 FJ 7T (2023F12 4318
9,104,000/2F97T) °

FA - # kT HEA/IE X A5,610,0008
F9 7T (20234 : 42,087,0002F5 7T ) » &
AR RREENEFIEE RS B
6,099,000% F9 7T ( 20234 : 38,246,000
SBPITC) o FN - BE R A RIEALL
PR S BT 7 A H9 U 25 /559,843,000 P9 T
(20234 19,916,000 F97T) °

2024F F 8,

The fair value hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps. The
interest rate swaps are used to protect against changes in the fair
value of certain fixed rate assets due to movements in market
interest rates. At 31 December 2024, the net positive fair value of
derivatives held as fair value hedges was MOP4,548,000 (2023:
MOP9,104,000).

The losses on the hedging instruments for the year were
MOP5,610,000 (2023: MOP42,087,000). The gains on the hedged
items attributable to the hedged risk for the year were
MOP6,099,000 (2023: MOP38,246,000). The gains on the breaking
cost for hedging for the year were MOP9,843,000 (2023:
MOP19,916,000).
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25 RERERMET

@

25 Notes to the cash flow statement

BASFEREETHIEEZRS (@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash flows generated
MEHERR from operating activities
2024 2023
TRMAR FRMT
MOP’000 MOP'000
EETED Operating activities
BR 750 A A Profit before taxation 233,941 397,820
REMT: Adjustments for:
neE Depreciation 23,505 23,466
REETEELFEX Net losses on disposal of fixed assets 121 235
RENATEEGEAEED Net (gains)/losses from disposal of financial

FAEMZERGE 2R/ assets measured at fair value through

BEE(W&)/ Bk other comprehensive income (2,001) 3,553
DEEBERZFM Amortisation of net discount of debt securities (146,029) (100,099)
AERETERE 2T Amortisation of discount of certificates of

deposit issued - 18,066
R B A Dividend income (16,981) a717)
oM BB /() Foreign exchange losses/(gains) 161,601 (24,080)
BHERBAREMEERE Net charge/(reversal) of expected credit losses

B/ REBRREEL and other credit impairment charges/

FIRE/(BE) impairment losses and allowance 169,768 23173)
HWER ATEES Fair value changes in relation to hedged items (6,099) (38,246)
HHRIAZATFEEE Fair value changes in relation to

hedging instruments 5,610 42,087
CEBESREEZE Changes in working capital and provisions 423,436 282,458
BHRMEERZEERIEFHIEM  Increase in minimum statutory deposits with AMCM (43,940) (10,587)
BEMRBEE (M WP (Increase)/decrease in trading assets (1,422) 12,412
BEER R EMRER D Decrease in gross advances to customers and
other accounts 2,043,550 75114
FRABBA=EARN L 2ER (Increase)/decrease in amounts due from ultimate
EBERDARARNBAR holding company, immediate holding company
2B (M), and fellow subsidiaries with original maturity over
three months (1,547,990) 331,481
BROREREEBEEZEAR Increase/(decrease) in deposits and balances of banks
gersg i/ Ord) and other financial institutions 20,061 (120,561)
EEEH - TH BEREMEFLM  Increasein current, fixed, savings and
other deposits of customers 2,443,159 1,994,146
BRIERERS Decrease in certificates of deposit issued - (415,673)
BERAREBERD Decrease in trading liabilities (481) (15,124)
HibIRIE REE (R D), AL (Decrease)/increase in other accounts and provisions (137,070) 165,781
ERFEIERAT BEERAR L  Decreaseinamounts due to ultimate holding
RZNBARZHKERD company, immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries (345,622) (513,853)
RELTHELEZHEFE Net cash generated from the operations 2,853,681 2,461,594
ERMERARRENH Complementary and withholding tax paid (48,665) (60,828)
REXTHELCREFE Net cash generated from operating activities 2,805,016 2,400,766
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25 B REBRMT ) 25 Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)
(b) REeRERABLEEZAM (b) Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
2024 2023
FREMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000

Be MFERITRIZ - A REE7T Cash and balances with banks, central
N EA S R I8 (M 5E12)  banks and other financial institutions

(Note 12) 989,038 1,265,091
TFREEIER AR - B Amounts due from ultimate holding
NSIDS A )= YN P company, immediate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries
—Re RTFHIRITRIZERIE — Cash and balances with banks 175,848 167,698
—REAHRAE=ZMEAURNTEE - Placements with banks with original
TFHERITRIZEFRIR maturity within three months 3,309,309 2,227,433
AT EEEBEZ A H Financial assets measured at fair value
teEEkE s cREE through other comprehensive income
—RFIEEREBRE — AMCM monetary bills with original
maturity within three months 942,484 219,294
BEBCRPISER ZAERIE  Less: Minimum statutory deposits with
R (P EE12) AMCM (Note 12) (445,257) (401,317)
4,971,422 3,478199
26 EREEALTRS 26 Material related party transactions
@ FEEBEABZ#HS (@) Keymanagement personnel remuneration
FTEEBAB G RIEEMRT Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
EERIE RIWT: incurred on the Bank’s directors, is as follows:
2024 2023
FRMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
HHEERA Short-term employee benefits 10,715 10,675
BERIR 1R A Post-employment benefits 896 1,040
1,611 n,715
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26 ERBAEALRS () 26 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) HEAEZERAT EBERARH (b) Transactions with ultimate holding company, immediate

AMBARREIEEBAEGRZRS

AEER ATRSKKERRRER
RITER AR BABERAREBRT
(BB)BERRAF ARAMBARRE
BEBABZRG BE-—RIEEE
5 R B AR AT ©

BEBEEAMBRREMM T 2R S
Kt FRZWS - MBIRRERA
SNEIRB 2R E B SRR T E R

holding company, fellow subsidiaries and key management
personnel

During the year, the Bank entered into transactions with the Bank'’s
ultimate holding company, Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation
Limited and immediate holding company, OCBC Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited, fellow subsidiaries and key management personnel in the
ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the income and expenses for the year,
on and off-statement of financial position outstanding at the

HEn R reporting date and corresponding average balances for the period
are set out below:
(i WARXZH () Incomeand expenses
2024 2023
FRMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
F 2 A Interest income 144,403 127,388
FEZH Interest expenses (102,935) (126,476)
Hpdgas (BR)(BIEEH  Otherincome/(loss) (including
SEBEE 2 (1B%K)) gains/(losses) incurred for
hedging activities) 28,829 (10,767)
BEESHAR2EMI A  Netlosses from financial instruments
FHE K held for trading (9,308) (6,823)
LEER Operating expenses (38,664) (47,649)
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26 ERBAEALRS () 26 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) EHRAEZERAR EBEZERAR B (b) Transactions with ultimate holding company, immediate
ZMBARAREEEEBEBABZRE(E) holding company, fellow subsidiaries and key management

personnel (Continued)
(i) B#MRRAZER (ii)y Statement of financial position balances
HHEALR T ek
Ending balance Average balance
2024 2023 2024 2023

FREMT TIRFITT FREMT TRFT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP'000

BE Assets
8 & NMTF SR 77 A % I Cash and balances with banks

PR ERITREUE and central banks 175,848 167,697 166,098 150,284
EERAGEE Trading assets 8,334 6,921 3,178 14,384
FEHITFERTTEIZE © Placements with banks,

PR ERTT I B A central banks and other

&R RUE financial institutions 5,386,739 2,774,056 3,051,005 1,660,856

AR EE 5 & B H % Financial assets measured at

A EMEEIULZE  fair value through other

JEREE comprehensive income - 170,508 61,171 171,368
EPE - EMiRIE K Advances to customers and

FTEEEBEASREK other accounts and

IR amounts due from key
management personnel 37,810 26,742 30,459 13,968
5,608,731 3,145,924 3,311,911 2,010,860
afs Liabilities
IRITRIZE R EAD Deposits and balances of
SRIEE 2T banks and other
Rtk financial institutions 2,450,356 2,920,988 2,168,642 2,005,694
EERARAEE Trading liabilities 5,200 5,252 3,043 12,344
BETFRE Certificates of deposit issued - - - 313,543
KPEEM T8 Current, fixed, savings and
HE - AtFESR Kk other deposits of
FEEBAB customers and amounts
FE5RIR due to key
management personnel 5,093 2,933 4,275 3,355
Hh BRIE N Other accounts
and provisions 9,295 16,435 8,613 8,174
2,469,944 2,945,608 2,184,573 2,343,110
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26 ERBAEALRS () 26 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) EHRAEZERAR EBEZERAR B (b) Transactions with ultimate holding company, immediate
ZMBARAREEEEBEBABZRE(E) holding company, fellow subsidiaries and key management

personnel (Continued)
(i) FTESMIA R (iii) Derivative financial instruments outstanding
HHEALR T ek
Ending balance Average balance
2024 2023 2024 2023

FREMT TIRFITT FREMT TRFT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP'000

HELH Notional amounts
EIIERSH Forward exchange
rate contracts 1,499,313 122,585 584,130 74716
FEEHELD Interest rate swap contracts 2,244,356 4,244,395 3,269,832 4,527,033
I EH A Equity contracts 654 - 323 3,158
€ EBER (c) Loanstodirectors
2024 2023
FEMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
HMEER RKEEETE Aggregate amount of relevant
loans outstanding 8,965 714
d FA BEFEFLABETEEAL (d) During the year, no allowance for impairment losses has been
2 FRIBVEEERDR(E 18 R A (2023 4 made in respect of the above advances to related parties (2023:
;) o Nil).

Annual Report 2024 79



9OCBC

B 75 R AR B AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

27

80

Bt 7 b B TR
KITESIEBR - BFEBEEE UEEATT
AR TEERERR - KTAGEZER
MEETEMEEENRS  UFER 52
ERNIEGEERR . RBHELREK ™
SRBEEERR ZERBERBUR
BREERBIKESEREHETZEZES
A WHERREEEEEZES  WE
BEBEELZEeNEEAEEELZES

EEMR - AMEBESETERRERK
MBS WHERZERRELIZFES

LABAE -

RIFEEF |RATE D EBERRE  RRE
EREENER  BRMER  UARERE
BEER -

@ FERRER
EERBIRNRZ S FAREEITEARE
AREATTHER o5& &
PTETAREMER EFSCEE
HATZITHRBHETITENEERR
ERZEEUNTATEERRER -

EERAREBRBLNEMEY &
EEERRNERARETREREE
AR E R - RITHERRRE
HETHETFEENER FEHRE
ERENERF ERDBERGLEER
B YRBERFIEEREHMNIES
KR PR BII1T R R 3% Y 0 & R R R 2R
I %E $ RBE B ROBERIBR o

FEERBREEEICHNATNEER
B UEBEERREEZEEE
Ml kit EEBRRABRRERE
ERREE BERE FEEERE
ERDBRES  EEBRFRERE -

2024F F 8,

27 Financial risk management

The Bank has established policies, procedures and limits to manage
various types of risks that the Bank is exposed to. Risk management
processes and management information systems are in place to identify,
measure, monitor and control credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and
operational risk. The risk management policies, procedures and limits
are approved by the Board of Directors or its designated committee,
and are monitored and reviewed regularly by the relevant risk
management committees, such as the Credit Risk Management
Committee and the Asset and Liability Management Committee
("ALCO"). Internal auditors perform regular audits and independent
checking to ensure compliance with the policies and procedures.

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each of the
above risks, the Bank’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risks, and the Bank’s management of capital.

(@ Creditrisk management
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty in a
transaction may default. It arises from the lending, trade finance,
treasury, derivatives and other activities undertaken by the Bank.
The Board of Directors has delegated the Bank’s credit risk
management to the Credit Risk Management Committee, which is
chaired by the Bank’s Chief Executive.

The credit risk management function is independent of the business
units. It oversees the implementation of credit policies and ensures
the quality of credit evaluation and approval. Credit approval is
conducted in accordance with the Bank’s credit policy, which
defines the credit extension criteria, the credit approval and
monitoring processes, the loan classification system and
impairment policy. The credit policy also takes into account the
guidelines issued by the AMCM and accounting standards issued
by Government of Macau Special Administrative Region with
respect to large exposures and impairment requirements.

Guidelines to manage credit risk have been laid down in the Bank’s
credit policies, which are regularly reviewed and approved by the
Credit Risk Management Committee. The credit policies cover the
delegated lending authorities, credit extension criteria, credit
monitoring process, loan classification system, credit recovery and
impairment policy.
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27 B &R B

@

BB (®)

EERBMER (&)

iy fEEERE
CEEE-REAABBRMK
EERPRMHF -BEEEERRHY
TEFEAGERAEBIE - $ﬁ

(i)

(iii)

BEHEBRRERF UTREE
RZHFRXFNEEEERR -
A AREHRZBEBRSHEE 5L
TEEPME ATEHIE—F
BRARMAERZEFHE M
BZEEBZESR - AIFCH

BB 17 3 R R A& RA RER

f\.’%ﬂ S R PREE - T E R
Bk IEE 2 R o AT

DTE*’*’ RARE BRERE

UAE@*E*;‘;&H AAF‘;%& ﬁ;@?ﬂ'ﬂ
EERE KA

AIRBEETZEABANEEE
BRREE -BHNEERRTE
EERRAFTEFNEIENRS
HF TEHERNERR -FE
HEﬁEE@%%@*H}%ﬁb !

AHBRER BHEERRR
BERBER -

TEREAR

RITHNZEEEBR MZERF

FEEETE IRTTE mA R B HIE :
AENERBHBEUNZS
TEEERBMEEFTERER
EJETHEDD&@)E*EEULTT ST
DMK EEEZ - RITIRERIAE
amKRERTSEER TEHEZ
MIEFTEMBERREFHAS °

BEERBZ AR
HEEABOAENRIAZEDN
B AELEBEHRERTER

BeEERRAER - FHi A
RHVANEEPHBEREM
REINEEHRF HAaRFR

EMER -

27 Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk management (Continued)

@

M

(i)

(iii)

Corporate credit risk

The corporate lending is generally made to customers with
strong financial background. The principal means of managing
credit risk is the credit approval process. The Bank has policies
and procedures to evaluate the potential credit risk of a
particular counterparty or transaction and to approve the
transaction. For corporate clients, the Bank has a detailed
credit review system that is applied to each counterparty on a
regular basis. The Bank also has limits for exposure to each
individual industry and for borrowers and groups of
borrowers, regardless of whether the exposure is in the form
of loans or non-funded exposures. The Bank also has a review
process to ensure the proper level of review and approval
depending on the size of the facility and risk grading of the
credit.

The Bank undertakes ongoing credit review and monitoring at
various level. The credit policies promote early detection of
counterparty, industry or product exposures that require
special attention. The Credit Risk Management Committee
oversees the overall portfolio risk as well as individual problem
loans and potential problem loans on a regular basis.

Retail credit risk

The Bank’s retail credit policy and approval process are
designed for the fact that there are high volumes of relatively
homogeneous, small value transactions in each retail loan
category. Because of the nature of retail banking, the credit
policies are based primarily on statistical analyses of risks with
respect to different products and types of customers. The
Bank based its own and industry experience to determine and
periodically revise product terms and desired customer
profiles.

Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit risk
involved in extending loan facilities to customers. These
transactions are, therefore, subject to the same credit
application, portfolio maintenance and collateral requirements
as for customers applying for loans.
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27 K RERER &) 27 Financial risk management (continued)
@ FERBMERE (&) (@) Creditrisk management (Continued)
(ivy EERBHES (iv) Concentrations of credit risk
EERBHEFRRN —HEZSH Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
FREME  LEEXTERED geographic, economic or industry factors similarly affect

Fa mMzSEENEEEER groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is
U AITTHEBEREEEE - material in relation to the Bank’s total exposures. The Bank
BRFEHAEBIERAR RE R does not have significant exposure to any individual or group

B AR Z RN AITIEE T
AEA BREEFARZUFE

of customers or counterparties except for the amounts due
from immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

82

EERER -
() mEER () Maximum exposure
BN AENERmEE The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
s AR A HI1B /RT MR date without taking into consideration of any collaterals
HEEHNEREERRE &1 held or other credit enhancements is represented by the
B A5 AR i% A %Iﬁ G Vaﬂ BE carrying amount of each financial assets in the statement
,%@DE%WTE?%%&E’J BRI © of financial position after deducting any impairment
ZIE = RBE T allowance. A summary of the maximum exposure is as
follows:
2024 2023
FERMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
GFHERTTRZE KA RIETT  Balances with banks and central
RIA banks 662,742 737,312
EEAREE Trading assets 8,343 6,921
EFPEFR M HARIA Advances to customers and
other accounts 17,488,110 19,702,595
JE SRR AT - EBE  Amounts due from ultimate holding
2 NIV company, immediate holding
NCIEQE] company and fellow subsidiaries 5,600,373 2,967,879
NEBEFEHEZE  Financial assets measured at fair value
a‘l‘)\HﬁﬁiﬁHﬁZﬁﬁZ through other
TREE comprehensive income 10,552,122 8,868,245
B ER R M EEA Financial guarantees and other credit
Bz AEE related contingent liabilities 75,853 93,303
B0 & HAb B 15 A Loan commitments and other credit
B2 related commitments 2,879,043 2,468,035
37,266,586 34,844,290
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27 I ERER 2
(@ FERRER(Z)
(iv) EEEBINES ()
2 BHMESEC BB

27 Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Creditrisk management (Continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (Continued)
(2) Geographical analysis of loans and advances to

K customers
2024
2B FEH
ERMBR - IE- B WEEM EREX
wE (ZEANL) (1B Bl E) (E3IRER)
Overdue

loans and Impaired
advances loans Expected
Gross loans (over3 (individually credit losses
and advances months) determined) (Stage 3)
FRMT FEMT FEM T FRMT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
B P Macau 16,418,136 43,349 88,194 3,502
B Hong Kong 487,258 - 444 -
HR B A China 630,970 - 2,636 -
HAh Other 23,249 - - -
17,559,613 43,349 91,274 3,502

2023
[EEE T8 5
B SME R BN GR BEER EREX
@ (Z@EAMLE) (EREE) (ZE3MER)
Overdue

loans and Impaired
advances loans Expected
Gross loans (over 3 (individually credit losses
and advances months) determined) (Stage 3)
TR TR FRMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’'000 MOP’000 MOP’000
P! Macau 17,998,184 29,706 115,909 3,574
BB Hong Kong 827,969 - - -
R A 3, China 684,131 - 1,157 -
H Other 45,578 - - -
19,555,862 29,706 117,066 3,574
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27 R RERE 2
(@ FEERBRERE(£)
(iv) EERBYES(2)

84

@

(3

2024F F 8,

B IE 77 3R 2 E P B E
KT ()

PA B3 38 5 J8 2 AT T IR S
RAZFIEMICBERER
REEHEZ —M5 £8
AR 2 BREESIIFEK
AR 2 —TT ERRIEE
BRERE -

BEEFIRTERED W
EEERRARDTRHE
14(b) A 55 o

Tt I 73R 2 (B T AR T

27 Financial risk management (continued)

@

Credit risk management (Continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (Continued)
(2) Geographical analysis of loans and advances to

customers (Continued)
The above geographical analysis is classified by the
location of the borrowers after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when a
loan is guaranteed by a party situated in an area different
from the counterparty.

Analysis of credit risk concentration by the industrial
sector of advances to customers is disclosed in Note
14(b).

(3) Geographical analysis of debt securities

2024 2023
s TE HA
FRBX EREAEX
BREE (SE3PER) REE (3R
Expected Expected
Carrying credit losses Carrying credit losses
amount (Stage 3) amount (Stage 3)
FREMT FREMT TR TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
BB Hong Kong 558,862 - 189,998 -
B P Macau 4,706,254 - 3,582,494 -
A A i China 3,403,096 - 3,048,803 -
Hfh T A& Rest of Asia-Pacific 89,942 - 68,390 -
B Europe - - 219,580 -
A, Other 900,678 - 727,223 -
9,658,832 - 7,836,488 -
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27 R RERE 2
EERREE (&)
(iv) EERBYES(2)

@

)

)

RITED B ZETFE S

27 Financial risk management (continued)
(@) Creditrisk management (Continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (Continued)
(4) Industry distribution of debt securities

2024 2023
B T HA
ERBX EREBX
FREE (SE3MEER) FREE (E3MBER)
Expected Expected
Carrying credit losses Carrying credit losses
amount (Stage 3) amount (Stage 3)
FEMT FEMT TR TR
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
R P9 R R X T Securities issued by
Y,/ 8894  Macao SAR
ERETZ Government and/
BFH or AMCM 4,706,254 - 3,582,494 -
H M 3E 5 Other securities
—ERKE — Credit institutions 4,629,952 - 2,512,051 -
=R /N — Other companies 322,626 - 1,741,943 -
9,658,832 - 7,836,488 -
B an K H At 5 FHIE A (5) Collaterals and other credit enhancements

AIREFPERMTEYE
B§ R EEFMER-
ReFRREREFLANE
e

HRBHBEFRENEREE
m#sA N EAm R EMER
RANAFEEGEDT:

BB IFREZ S E
BEMBAEZEMHA
REAMERREZ
NFEE

The Bank holds collaterals against advances to customers
in the form of mortgages over property, other registered
securities over assets, cash deposits and guarantees.

An estimate of the fair value of collaterals and other credit
enhancements held against past due but not impaired
financial assets is as follows:

2024 2023
FRERMT FRFT
MOP’000 MOP’000
Fair value of collaterals and other
credit enhancements held against
financial assets that are past due
but not impaired 818,473 1,139,661
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27 MR RERE &)
EERBREE (&)
(v) SEEBHES (&)

@

®)

©)

2024F F 8,

HFDRAMEAE (B)
HNERRBFIAN S H
BE FRERNERRIE
RREMIAME -BEE
XEFEFMEUTAHESE
THHEAFERN BFE
H BEREMAERER
BEER -

KT ER 2 B K 4R on A B HO I
RNBEMEARBEEEAR
B WH ATELEHEN
REENENR AEEER
hAREEERNE -

B & P K R 17 [F] 3 B 30X S
EHEECIEEEX
MERZGEERBRERTH
RATEREERBRERT
A—HK ZIEXHZETFE
B L B B AR 30 $T{E B 2 5
HFRERHE -

RBER RREBF R
BREERFARBLES
[F] # 18 &9 7F € M 0 47 2 (B 75
EFEEERNT:

27 Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk management (Continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (Continued)

@

®

©

Collaterals and other credit enhancements (Continued)
Collateral held as security for financial assets other than
loans and advances depends on the nature of the
instrument. Debt securities, treasury and other eligible
bills are generally unsecured.

The Bank’s policies regarding obtaining collateral have
not significantly changed during the reporting period
and there has been no significant change in the overall
quality of the collateral held by the Bank since the prior
period.

Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to
customers and banks

Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the
same way as the Bank manages its corporate lending risk,
and risk gradings are applied to the counterparties with
individual counterparty limits set.

At the reporting date, the credit quality of investment in
debt securities analysed by designation of external credit
assessment institution, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
or their equivalents, is as follows:

2024 2023

TR T TR T

MOP’000 MOP’000

AA-ZE AA+ AA-to AA+ 6,032,699 4,129,762
A-ZE A+ A-to A+ 3,351,454 3,691,935
RAAA- Lower than A- 120,192 14,791
mET AR Unrated 154,487 -
9,658,832 7,836,488
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27 MR RERE &)

(b)

RBESRREE

MBETRBEEREREARNE
ERRHEMIABENER - ]17
BAIURPESABREERE  BR
EASHPEESEENRDES -

MBEETHRREBTIGHIREER
BEERZEE@NHHER -BEERE
EEZEameREERE WE Rk
B -UHKEEREMAZERYE
TRBHEBHRIEOALTER BE
EERNDESAREREEHE KR
EiERMNREBE SHRIER - 85
AEREERDESRAR  AREE
EHnBEcRRERRIE -FEEZ
EREE CRBRERNBE G5 Y
ERADEcRBRAASNIFE IR
THRRDHEZRBRDCERERARE
BREAESREEEBLAEERIES

REE-—REEXEGTNESRE
BiIHAARDUNEESIN TEER
RIRITRAEFRETS - B A1TIR
BRHAERNBREE WENERK
EEHNKEESFER - ATHEH
BRBESMNETENRH - AR
REARFEERBDES - U T2
TERBEERBEHRROFTIIZN R
SRRBREANINHBEREIIR -

27 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Bank’s inability to fund an increase in
assets or meet its obligations as they fall due. The Bank has
established liquidity management policies for ensuring adequate
liquidity is maintained at all times.

Liquidity is managed day-to-day by the Global Markets (‘GMM”)
under the direction of ALCO. ALCO, which comprises personnel
from senior management, treasury function, risk management,
financial management and other business areas that could affect
liquidity risk, is responsible for overseeing the liquidity risk
management, in particular implementation of appropriate liquidity
policies and procedures, identifying, measuring and monitoring
liquidity risk, and control over the liquidity risk management
process. The Board of Directors approves the liquidity risk strategy
and policies, maintains continued awareness of the overall liquidity
risk profile, and ensures liquidity risk is adequately managed and
controlled by senior management within the established risk
management framework.

To cater for funding requirements during ordinary course of
business, sufficient liquid assets are held, and access to the
interbank market is maintained. In addition, adequate standby
facilities are maintained in order to meet any unexpected and
material cash outflow. The Bank also performs regular stress tests
on its liquidity position to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained at
all times. The following tables set out the details of the analysis of
the Bank’s material assets and liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining periods at reporting date to the
contractual maturity date.

Annual Report 2024 87



£)OCBC

B 75 R AR B AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

27 R RERE 2
(b) FBELEMERE (&)

27 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)

) EEREBERERERESHE (i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based on the
HBLEEAERE SR remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
WA maturity date

2024
WANE  3EANE 1E0E
PEES AR E3fERR BiER B5%R SENL i 4%
Overlmonth Over3months  Overlyear
Repayable Within ~ butwithin but  butwithin
ondemand Imonth Imonths  within1year 5Syears  Over5years Undated Total
TAMx  TEMn  TAMRT  TRAR  TAMR  TAMR TEMn TAAR
MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000
BE Assets
RERBEHHETAZER  Cashand balances with banks
RABTHE and central banks 473,159 70,557 - - - - 445,257 988,973
BERBEE Trading assets - - - - - - 8,343 8,343
REER Advances to customers 281506 844,546 380,237 1839128 703102 691,732 62121 17,357,462
FREAERAT  Amountsdue fom ulfimate
BEERAAR holding company, immediate
FAZMBLAFAFE  holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 175,849 1,937,199 2,156,830 1,330,495 - - - 5600373
RERRR Certificates of deposit held - - 158,457 514,529 - - - 672,986
HAREEHR /3% Securties issued by Macao SAR
F2ERETZES  Governmentand jor AMCM - TB23 1239234 2,741,783 - - - 4,706,254
IWATFEEFEE  Otherfinancial assets measured
EEEARMREN  atfarvalue through other
H.EBEE comprehensive income - - - 687,621 3,591,971 - 893,290 5,172,882
EMEEREMEA  Otherassets and other accounts - 69,569 23,443 13,383 9,667 398 456,128 572,588
aaE Total assets 930,604 3,647,108 3,958,201 726939 10,633,740 6,918,130 1,865,139 35,079,861
B Liabilities
RITER Deposits and bialances of banks 20,061 - - - - - - 20,061
RAKERR Deposttfrom public
sector entities 1,288 300,000 - 21,736 - - - 329,024
FRARFER Deposit from
non-bank customers 13,255,607 2,732,284 6,933,661 3,699,667 38 - - 26,621,257
BEERER Trading liabilities - - - - - - 5,610 5,610
ERFAERAT  Amounts dueto ultimate holding
BEERAAR company, immediate holding
FAZNBLAZFE  companyand
fellow subsidiaries 1,870 1,581,623 934,242 - 57,359 - - 2,591,094
EREBREE Other liabilities 157 198,960 92,126 57,566 - - 146,064 494,873
gk Total liabilities 13,288,983 4,818,867 7,960,029 3,784,969 57,397 - 151,674 30,061,919
F(8E)/EEEE  Net(liablity)asset gap (12,358,379)  (II7759)  (4,001,828) 3341970 10576343 6918130 1713465 5007942

2024F F 8,



£)OCBC

B 75 R AR B AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

27 MR RERE &)
b) RBELEAREE ()

27 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)

) EEREBERERERESHE (i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based on the
HBLEEAERE SR remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
DR (&) maturity date (continued)

2023
@ANE  3BANUE 1EhE
PHER AR BIEAR E1Em  B5FA SERLE EH 2%
OverTmonth Over3months ~ Over 1 year
Repayable Within but within but  butwithin
on demand Tmonth Smonths  within T year Syears  Over5years Undated Total
TR TRAR  FRAR  TRMx  TEMx TR FRAR TRAR
MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000
BE Assets
RERBEHHETAZER  Cashand balances with banks
RABTHE and central banks 631,583 232153 - - - - 401317 1,265,053
BERBEE Trading assets - - - - - - 6,921 6921
RFEH Advances to customers 52972 1136,701 498,514 2464498 7482,367 7887429 - 19,522,481
FREAERAT  Amountsdue fom ulfimate
BEERAAR holding company, immediate
FAZMBLAFAFE  holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 167698 1324592 1,046,170 429419 - - - 2967879
DATEEFEE  Financial assets measured at fair
E2EHALL value through other
2EMEZEBEE  comprehensiveincome - 609974 898,724 4448242 1,879,548 - 1,031,757 8,868,245
EMEEREMBEA  Otherassets and other accounts 291 35,004 495585 39871 10,551 33 594933 753,228
aaE Total assets 875,164 3338424 2492993 7382030 9,372,466 7887802 2034928 33,383,807
B Liabilities
MEREER Deposit from public
sector entities 645 838,332 - 833,210 - - - 1,672,247
FRAREER Deposit from
non-bank customers 11404800 2587130 4,881,665 3957782 3498 - - 2834805
BERRER Trading liabilities - - - - - - 6,091 6,091
B HAERAT  Amounts dueto ultimate holding
BEERAAR company, immediate holding
FAZMBLAAZE  companyand
fellow subsidiaries 3,886 2,098,526 778,365 - 56,864 - - 2937641
HBERER Other accounts and provisions - 273,780 127103 107193 - - 13526 681,602
#Ef Total lbilies 140933 57768 STEUR ABBM5 60362 - TOET 28)324%
F(BE)/BEZE  Net(iabilty)/asset gap (0534167)  (2459344)  (3294140) 2483785 9312004 7867802 185,31 5,251,351
AnnualReport2024 89
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27 R RERE 2

(b)
(i)

RBESERER (&)

ERMBEZENRTERER

ATINREARTHERBERE
HAMABMAEE D SHEBND B
DM BREMEFITESRAR
AEHNERRESREREEH
EENRFREENZERER
ZUTESMIA - AIRENESE
ERNABHOARTERSIR - I507
EEREBENEBNNERESL
MEXNAHERSE - MKERR
R EAF SRR AT
BEDAMRSESNRNTNE -

27 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)

(i)

Contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities

The tables below analyse the Bank’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities for: all non-derivative financial liabilities, and net and
gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the
contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the
timing of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed are based on
the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Interest payable in
respect of non-derivative financial liabilities is reported based
on contractual interest payment date. Interest payable in
respect of perpetual subordinated notes is reported based on
the contractual interest payable up to the Bank’s optional
redemption date.

2024
EARLE 3EANL 1550k Rz
PRER fiAR  {E3BAR BiER  B5%R SENE BHH ReR4E
OverImonth Over3months  Over1year
Repayable Within ~ butwithin ~ butwithin  butwithin Gross cash
ondemand Imonth  3months Tyear Syears Over5years  Undated outflow
Taflzr  TABn  TAMR  TAMR  TEMR TEMR TRAR TAMR
MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP'000
it eHek Non-derivative financial liabilities
RITER Deposits and balances of banks 20,061 - - - - - - 20,061
DAKERR Deposit from public sector entiies 1288 307447 - 28,146 - - - 336,88
FRARPER Depost fromnon-bank customers 13,255,607 2,757,181 7,008,844 3,782,939 3 - - 26,804,610
ERRABRAR Amounts due o ulimate holding
EEERARR company, immediate holding
RAZHBARNE company and fellow subsidlaries 1870 1588809 940,097 - 59,157 - - 2509933
Atag Other liabliies 57 169,947 48,460 28,026 - - 6064 392,654
13,288,983 4,823,384 7,997,401 3,839, 59,196 - 146,064 30,154,139
REDE R Unrecognised loan commitments 1103304 14040 142448 502875 988,776 600 - 2819083
BBERRAL Financial quarantees and other credli
AEABEZANEE  related contingent iabilties 706 14,87 26,878 31,128 2954 - - 75,853
1,104,010 155,227 169,326 534,003 991,730 600 - 2,954,896
fiAIREERE Derivative cash flows
REEEEZEERTE Dervative financial instruments
settled on a gross basis
-~ - total outflow - 4,098 88,714 458,517 - - - 551,329
A - totalinflow - (@583 (88218 (452,32 - - - (544782
- (85) 436 6,96 - - - 6,547
90 20245 5H
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27 K RERER &) 27 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) REBELEAMBETE (&) (b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(iiy *RMEBZENRTRBELRE (&) (i) Contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial

liabilities (continued)

2023
WEANLE  3EAME  1EME ffRz
IEEX  EAR EIEAR BIFR ESER SENME B RengE
Over Tmonth Over 3 months
Repayable Within -~ butwithin -~ butwithin Over 1year but Gross cash
on demand Imonth 3 months Tyear within5years  Over 5 years Undated outflow
TRAr  TRAx  TRAn  TRMn  TEMR  TEMR TEMR TEMR
MOP000 ~ MOP000 ~ MOPOO0  MOP000  MOP000  MOP0O0  MOP000  MOP'000

HiteRes Non-derivative financial liabilities
DABERR Depositfrom public sector entities 645 859845 - 871,204 - - - 179169
FRIRPER Deposit from non-bank customers 11404800 261535 4975153 4073679 3,553 - - B3
ERFEERAT Amounts due to ulimate holding
BEERAAR company, immediate holding
AZNBARFE company and fellow subsidiaries 3886 210123 782614 - 59416 - - 2047148
At Other liabilties - 27720 59,465 4801 - - 1356 508725
1409331 5803932 5817232 4992897 62,969 - 17352 28,259,887
AEAETAE Unrecognisedloan commitments 966,413 149,262 041 83945 284771 7891 - 2468035
FHERRELEEREBL Financal quarantees and other
$EE credit related
contingent liabilities 536 8,792 16,837 61,526 5612 - - 93,303
966,949 158,054 237078 900983 290,383 7891 - 2,561,338
fiATIRRERE Derivative cash flows
BREAE/HASRIE  Derivative financialinstruments
settled on net basis - 352 4020 2230 - - - 6,602
REBLEIHESRIE  Derivative financialinstruments
settled ona gross basis
¥t - total outflow - 846 121,895 303 - - - 123,044
~ERA - total inflow - (921 (121309) (355) - - - (122,585)
- () 586 () - - - 459
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©

miEERER
iSRRI E M AR R AN T -
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M BMATTEEXNFEBIEDMESE
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AR NEEY EERBELERESR
TTETR AXmGRERE -
ExeFMMAETSRAREERR
SEEIBR -BEEREEEZES
EETESHMEET SRR IBE
BREMETRARNEREEER
PIUNEEE PR A N B 1R IR AR - Z E R
HEERBEEERZBEEHREL2EM
MEBRE AIZBR/TFEB
FREE
i)y REEBRER
RITH N X @R E M E Mg
EERY - FMEEABRIZRATR
BE RENMAEEBTEENE
EREC TEESABRAEHE
HEHhBEERRESRERKFPR
ETESERRARE - RITZH
ETREMBBREEET S BEE
VTHBELESTSHZNRE
RITIME R A R 8 B R E b OT4E
TAEBEMNERER
RITEMEMEGFETEEE
KRG EAZ R ER R - B
EHERAKRGAER -EHM TN
2R emI AN TAMAA
REZHHRM - WA
AR SRR — BB R R E Ay
BHREENTE -
2024F F 8,

27 Financial risk management (continued)

©

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk arising from the movements in market prices
of on-and off-balance sheet positions in interest rates, foreign
exchange rates as well as equity and commodity prices and the
resulting change in the profit or loss or reserve of the Bank.

The Bank is exposed to market risk on position taken or financial
instruments held or taken such as foreign exchange contracts,
interest rate contracts, fixed income and equity securities and
derivatives instruments.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the policies for the
management of market risks and trading authorities. ALCO has
been delegated the responsibility of controlling and monitoring
market risk including regular review of the risk exposures and the
risk management framework such as the established limits and
stop-losses. The limits are set by ALCO and reviewed on a periodic
basis with reference to market conditions. It is the Bank’s policy that
no limit should be exceeded.

(i) Interestraterisk management

The Bank’s interest rate positions arise from treasury and
commercial banking activities. Interest rate risk primarily results
from the timing differences in the repricing of interest-bearing
assets, liabilities and commitments. It also relates to positions
from non-interest-bearing liabilities including shareholders’
funds and current accounts, as well as from certain fixed rate
loans and liabilities. Interest rate risk is managed by the GMM
within limits approved by the Board. The Bank also uses
interest rate swaps and other derivatives to manage interest
rate risk.

The Bank uses the Price Value of a Basis Point (“PVBP")
measurement to monitor and limit its interest rate risk
exposure. PVBP is a technique involving the calculation of the
change in present value of a financial instrument or a portfolio
of instruments due to a change of one basis point in interest
rates. It also provides a quick tool to evaluate the impact on
profit and loss due to a basis point movement in interest rates.
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27 Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk management (continued)

©

M

Increase in 10 basis points
Decrease in 10 basis points

Interest rate risk management (continued)

The Bank uses scenario analysis and stress test to assess the
banking book interest rate risk the Bank would face under
adverse circumstances. Scenario analysis and stress test are
also devised to assess the impact on net interest income
arising from the optionality of demand and saving deposits,
the prepayment of mortgage loans and the prepayment of
debt securities with embedded options.

Structural interest rate risk arises primarily from the deployment
of non-interest-bearing liabilities, including shareholders’ funds
and current accounts, as well as from certain fixed rate loans
and liabilities. Structural interest rate risk is monitored by ALCO.

Interest rate sensitivity sets out below is for risk management
reported to ALCO only in simplified scenario, where demand
and saving deposits remain in the level as they currently are
and mortgage loans are serviced until their original maturity.
Actual changes in the Bank’s profit before tax resulting from
the change in interest rates may differ from the result of the
sensitivity analysis. The effects on interest-bearing financial
instruments and interest rate swaps have been included in this
calculation.

2024 2023
FRMT FERMT
MOP’000 MOP’000
3,022 2,885
(3,022) (2,885)
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27 K RERER &) 27 Financial risk management (continued)
(€ MEEKBER(£Z) () Market risk management (continued)
(i RNEEBREE(H) (i) Interestrate risk management (continued)
TRETRBEEAEEEERE The following tables indicate the expected next repricing date
BB TRMESEIA - for the assets and liabilities at the reporting date.
2024
IEANL 1E0E
3EAR BER {B5% R SENE &5 ait
Over3months
Within butwithin  Over1yearbut Non-interest
3months Iyear within5years  Over5years bearing Total

TRMR  TAMz  TAMz  TAMR  TEMR  TAMR
MOP'000  MOPOOD  MOPOO0  MOP000  MOPOOD  MOP'O00

BE Assets
ReRBRENRE Cash and balances with banks and
Rk central banks 498,381 - - - 490,592 988,973
BERRERE Trading assets - - - - 8,343 8,343
RFEFREMER Advances to customers and other accounts 16,440,138 482,489 632,306 4,681 (M504 17,488,10
FRELERAA EBLRAF Amounts due from ultimate holding company,
RRZNELAFE immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 4,140,326 1,320,658 - - 139,389 5,600,373
DAZEEFEEESSFTALY Financial assets measured at fair value through
SEMEZEBEE other comprehensive income 4,088,185 3,820,857 1,749,789 - 893,201 10,552,122
EFEE Fixed assets - - - - 441,940 441,940
hEE Total assets 5167030 5624004 2,382,095 4,681 1902,051 35,079,861
8f Liabilities
BOEH Deposits and balances of banks 20,061 - - - - 20,061
REES TH BEREMET Curent,fixed, savings and other deposits
of customers 21,792,244 3,775,008 38 - 1,382,991 26,950,281
EERRAE Trading liabilties - - - - 5,610 5610
ERNEBRRATRAZNELR Amounts due to uimate holding company,
7 immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 2,515,617 - 54,606 - 20,871 2,591,094
EREEREE Other accounts and provisions - - - - 494,873 494,873
haf Totalliabilties 321922 3,775,008 54,644 - 1904345 30061919
NEGEEEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 839108 1,848,909 2,327,451 4,681 (2,204 5,017,942
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27 K RERER &) 27 Financial risk management (continued)
(€ MEEKBER(£Z) () Market risk management (continued)
(i RNEEBREE(H) (i) Interestrate risk management (continued)
2023
WAUL 1B E
IEAR {BI1ER ELE SELE %8 Chl
Over 3 months
Within butwithin -~ Over 1 year but Non-interest
3 months Tyear  within5years  Over5years bearing Total

TR TEMT TR TEMR  TERMR  TEfR
MOPOOD  MOPOOO  MOPOOD  MOPOOO  MOPOOD  MOPOOO

BE Assets
REREHEORER Cash and balances with banks and
RS central banks 44700 - - - 818,052 1,265,053
EEREE Trading assets - - - - 6921 6921
REEFRAMEE Advances to customers and other accounts 18,351,406 497539 587063 2788 263799 19702595
ERERERAT EBARAT Amounts due from ultimate holding company,
RRZNEAANE immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 2421834 421791 - - 118,254 2967879
WATEEFEEEZEHA  Financial assets measured at fair value thiough
Eh2mUia eREE other comprehensive income 263869 3976,639 1,221,681 - 1,031,756 8,868,245
A EERAMESR Fived assets - - - - 57314 573114
BEE Total assets 23,864,410 4895969 1,808,744 2,788 2,811,896 33,383,807
8f Liabilities
REES TH BEREMBI Curent, fixed, savings and other deposits
of customers 18,281,656 479105 3498 - 1430916 24507122
BERBEE Trading liabiliies - - - - 6,091 6,091
EREB2RAERFZMBLF Amounts dueto utimate holding company,
1B immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 2,862,833 - 54846 - 19,962 2937641
AEERER Other accounts and provisions - - - - 681,602 681,602
BaaE Totalliabiliies 21144489 4,791,052 58344 - 2,138,571 28,152,456
FEHBEER Interest rate sensitivity gap 2719921 104917 1750400 2788 673,325 5,251,351
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27 Financial risk management (continued)
() Market risk management (continued)
(i) Interestraterisk management (continued)

The following table indicates the effective interest rates for the

BRI assets and liabilities of the year:
2024 2023

FHTFEHRIRITRE  FR Placement with banks, central banks

SRTT R HoAth & RS SR IE and other financial institutions 4.12% 3.93%
EFEREBK Loans and advances to customers 3.94% 3.84%
TREE Financial assets 4.81% 4.40%
IRITRIZE K Efth & i iE Deposits and balances of banks and

TR RS other financial institutions 4.58% 4.52%
EPER Deposits from customers 2.17% 1.92%
B EREE (iiy Currency risk management

RITHHMERBREINEEE K
BERTER - MEINERSAER
BEEERABERZESI
RS BMMIZAEE

HMRAT AN EERBERNA
BT BBERETEE ME
—RREk¥Es AhEEe TR
RETHFEERNEBRER ° AT

The Bank’s foreign exchange positions arise from foreign
exchange dealing and commercial banking operations. All
foreign exchange positions are managed by the GMM within
limits approved by ALCO.

The directors do not consider the Bank to have significant
foreign currency risk as the majority of the Bank’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in Macau patacas, Hong Kong
dollars and United States dollars, which are pegged to each

ARmERAZER: other. The exposure at the reporting date was as follows:
2024512 A31H
31December 2024
B it ESpH Hith &%
MOP HKD uUsb Others Total
BEE Total assets 42.2% 38.8% 10.7% 8.3% 100.0%
FEy=N T Total liabilities 41.2% 43.1% 1.4% 8.3% 100.0%
1.0% (4.3%) 3.3% 0.0% 0.0%
202312 A31H
31 December 2023
SRPIH ke e HAh &5t
MOP HKD usD Others Total
BEE Total assets 42.6% 2.1% 10.6% 57% 100.0%
FES=NE Total liabilities 416% 42.4% 10.3% 5.7% 100.0%
1.0% (1.3%) 0.3% 0.0% 0.0%
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27 Financial risk management (continued)

C)

Operational risk management

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events.

The Bank’s risk management framework is established to control
risks at both corporate and departmental levels. The underlying
management principle is built upon a long-standing culture of high
integrity and risk awareness fostered by senior executives of the
Bank.

The framework consists of governing policies with control
measures to ascertain absolute compliance by all operating units.
These measures are directed, controlled and held to account by
operational management committees chaired by senior executives.
Regular reviews are performed by the committees to ensure
proper functioning of internal controls and to identify improvement
opportunities.

Furthermore, independent reviews are conducted by the Bank’s
Internal Audit Department to measure the effectiveness of the
Bank’s system of internal controls. This department reports to the
Supervisory Council to ensure the framework is managed with high
standards of probity.

Annual Report 2024
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27 Financial risk management (continued)
(e) Capital management

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of the Bank’s business and to meet the statutory
capital adequacy ratio. In addition to meeting the AMCM
requirements, the Bank’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Bank'’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Bank actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions. The amount of minimum capital
requirements held for credit, market and operational risks are
calculated in accordance with Basel Il requirements under the
AMCM regulations.

Capital is allocated to various activities of the Bank depending on
the risk taken by each business division. The Bank is subject to the
capital requirements of the AMCM for its regulatory supervision
purposes. The Bank has complied with all externally imposed
capital requirements throughout the year ended 31 December 2024
and 2023, and are well above the minimum required ratio set by the

AMCM.
28 ETEA 28 Staff Benefits
2024 2023
THEMT FRPIT
MOP’000 MOP’000
IR AE F PR AN Retirement benefit costs 14,765 16,121

BIFEAHIEFIFE K AR1TH 2001518438
FETEERE BTREZREAR
FIFTE A G B THER - T WAk
AEEARTABER  ZEFANEE
MATTEBHE HEIHEEFABEEE
REREOABER &8 THME LI
SERGREBALT o

2024F F 8,

A defined contribution scheme was established on 3rd January, 2001 to
cover all qualifying employees in Macau at various funding rates, in
accordance with the local practice and requirements. The costs of the
scheme are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred and
the assets of these schemes are held separately from the Bank. Any
forfeiture amount under the Scheme is refunded to the Bank when the
member leaves employment prior to the employer’s voluntary
contributions being vested fully.
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29 Fair values
(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Financial instruments measured at fair value on an ongoing basis
include trading assets and liabilities, customer deposits designated
at fair value through profit or loss, and financial instruments
classified as financial instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics of
the financial instruments and relevant market information. The Bank
measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:

(i) Level1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market
for an identical instrument.

(i) Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments
valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

(i) Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This category
includes all instruments where the valuation technique includes
inputs not based on observable market data and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that
are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments
where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions
are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

Annual Report 2024 9 9



9OCBC

B 75 R AR B AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

29 AEEE#)

100

@

AP EEFEZEMTIA(H)
RRBEBRMEZZNEH TAER
BEMSREXRFIEHREAEERF
BE ERAALIIFRREERT S
REHENEMBERMIE ATEAME
BEAXBEEAFEESBERPARKR
EREREFEMRBEIEERN] RE
MRS REBITIRRE - AR ERE
AEOTAE T AP AROR A HE e (EE Y -
HEREANBEEREATER MU
R TAERSHNERS %
BERAKERERBMSZLEEER
FRHEH EIRFEOER -

HEBEXAZRRAABRNTISER -
At R FEEAENITELEES -
T e ITERER —ExA
EHBEENTEEMSEIERE -
R SHE A HEERB IS A - [T
AEE| —AYFERERETSER
ABRA mEHSFERDSEE T
FEEHAAEEANGRIERATRS
HIKFE - B REES T RERE R
EHER BENXHRURRSE
EEANMEEMEMANRSHE - T
ABRBEN FEERZAFEEREN
HRERERNKSHME ARTS
REZRMBERRE -

MRBBABENMERRAE
AREEEERRHE KGR B
BMAOEREEAFEENGENEE
FAx - AIBENTEREXBIRRE
BT RIERLTENE LHRE
BHENEEEHR-—REANTE
i H R 1L o

ERBAEMNIAE KMTUKAE
EHERANECLEEBREIEARTE
BEFENEE ZSHEEX—K
MEARCEIRNGHEELEE MK
MEPRNITHEEFEBERATRTES
BB R - HE2024F 128318 &
TRMEEBEERHTMNemEE
HEMEBEETAFEEE - (2023
F 48R
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29 Fair values (continued)
(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair values of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
are based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For
all other financial instruments that are not traded in the active
markets, the Bank determines fair values using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques include net present value of expected future
cash flows and discounted cash flow models based on “no-
arbitrage” principles, standard option pricing models across the
industry for vanilla derivative products. The objective of valuation
techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the
price of the financial instrument at the reporting date that would
have been determined by market participants acting at arm’s
length.

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable
market data. Hence, the reliability of the fair values measurement is
high. However, certain financial instruments are valued on the basis
of one or more significant market inputs that are not observable.
The fair value derived is more judgmental. “Not observable” does
not mean there is absolutely no market data available but there is
little or no current market data available from which to determine
the level at which an arm’s length transaction would likely occur.
Examples of observable inputs include foreign exchange spot and
forward rates, benchmark interest rate curves and volatility surfaces
for commonly traded option products. Examples of unobservable
inputs include volatility surfaces for less commonly traded option
products and correlations between market factors.

Availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces
the need for management judgement and estimation and also
reduces the valuation uncertainty associated with determination of
fair values. The availability varies depending on the products and
markets and is prone to changes based on specific events and
general conditions in the financial markets.

For more complex instruments, the Bank uses the broker pricing
service, which adopts proprietary valuation models, as inputs to a
fair value measurement. These models usually are developed from
recognised valuation models across the industry with some or all of
the inputs into these models being unobservable in the market. The
Bank did not measure any financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value on a non-recurring basis as at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: same).
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29 N EE#) 29 Fair values (continued)

(@ HULAFEENEZEWMIA(E) (@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)
NEEBEIHRIEGESRE - ZEES Fair values are subject to a control framework that aims to ensure
EERAFLEELHBLNEAZER that they are either determined, or validated, by a function
EMBEREETIRE Bt B independent of the risk-taker. To this end, ultimate responsibility for
ERATFEENREEEEZEENBEEL - the determination of fair values lies with the Finance Department
VB LAEAENREF YAE (“FIN”). FIN establishes procedures governing valuation, and is
WRELEFHE —ABETER - responsible for ensuring that these comply with all relevant

accounting standards.

TRUAFEBESH LSRR ITE 2D The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair
BHAEDTRBEAUNRFEETE value at the reporting date according to the level in the fair value
eI A: hierarchy into which they are categorised:
2024
FIER F22ER HIZEH &t
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total

TRMR TRMR TR TRMR
MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP'000  MOP’000

REMALEETE Recurring fair value measurements
EE Assets
BERBERE Trading assets
—EERBRTESRMIAY - Derivative financial instruments held
ERTVEE for trading - 8,343 - 8,343
REPERRHMEER Advances to customers and
other accounts
—-HHARITEeRIAY - Derivative financial instruments held
FAFEE for hedging - 9,667 - 9,667

AT EESEBEEE A Financial assets measured at fair value

HizEb Rz emEE through other comprehensive income
-RMEERCEREE - AMCM monetary bills - 4,706,254 - 4,706,254
—HMESES — Other debt securities 4,271,596 680,982 - 4,952,578
—FLTERRES — Unlisted equity securities - - 893,290 893,290
4,271,596 5,387,236 893,290 10,552,122
8 Liabilities
BERAZAER Trading liabilities
-EERBTEEMIA ~ Derivative financial instruments held
ZANTEE for trading - 5,610 - 5,610
HibfRIE REE Other accounts and provisions
—HHhARITESRIA - Derivative financial instruments held
ZEBLTER for hedging - 5,119 - 5,119
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UAFEEFEZESMIA(E)

29 Fair values (continued)

(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

2023
FNER F2EM ERES &t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FREMT FEMT FEMT FEMT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
REMATLEEFE Recurring fair value measurements
BE Assets
BERAREE Trading assets
~HERBTESRTIAY - Derivative financial instruments held
FEAFEE for trading - 6,921 - 6,921
REPERRHMEE Advances to customers and other
accounts
~HRERTEERTIAY — Derivative financial instruments held
FRTER for hedging - 15,188 - 15,188
AT EESEBHZEA  Financial assets measured at fair value
Etm2ERE EREE through other comprehensive income
-RMEERCERRRE - AMCM monetary bills - 3,582,494 - 3,582,494
—EE%E S - Other debt securities 3,503,640 750,354 - 4,253,994
—JFEmERES - Unlisted equity securities - - 1,031,757 1,031,757
3503640 4332848 1031757 8,868,245
=1 Liabilities
BERAZARE Trading liabilities
~-EERBTESRTIAY - Derivative financial instruments held
BRFEE for trading 1 6,090 - 6,091
H A 8RB REH Other accounts and provisions
—$mARITEERTAE Y ~ Derivative financial instruments held
ArTEER for hedging - 6,084 - 6,084
2024F F 3]
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@

UAFPEEIEZSMIA (£)
FISREF 25 R EE
REAFE BemITAEQTFEER
MBS REBE F2E5M(20234F:
R BN ESRIATEAT
BENF2ERELEF1542(2023
F 1 418,251,000 P ) » AT 2
BRAREBELENEFAER
ATFPEBESSHz2HAzE® - &
ERMENREREREENR
BLASNEY (B ek P B ] B 5%)
BAETRHRES B A2 M AR

M

EIETTER -

BIERZAFEE

FIZER N FIEEZHE
TRIFERFHEEFIFERZA
FEER ERE R RS

29 Fair values (continued)
(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

()

(i)

Transfers between Level 1and 2

During the year, nil financial instruments (2023: same) were
transferred from Level 1 to Level 2 and nil (2023:
MOP418,251,000) of financial instruments were transferred from
Level 2 to Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The Bank’s policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
during the year in which they occur. The transfer occurs when
quoted prices in active markets or inputs that are other than
quoted prices (directly or indirectly observable) for identical
assets are available between different reporting dates.

Level 3 fair values

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning
balance to the ending balances for fair value measurements in

L0k Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
UAFEEFER
HBEHAHM
2EHKBEZEREE-
BHES
Financial assets
measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income -
Equity securities
TR
MOP’000
BE Assets
2024 F1 AR &% As at 1January 2024 1,031,757
REMEERERERZ Changes in fair value recognised in the other
NFEEZ comprehensive income (138,467)
2024 F 12 B3 B & As at 31 December 2024 893,290
2023F1R1H & # As at 1January 2023 1,379,830
REMEERERERZ Changes in fair value recognised in the other
NEEBREZ comprehensive income (348,073)
202312 /331 B &4 As at 31 December 2023 1031757
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UAFEEFEZESMIA(E)

29 Fair values (continued)

(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

(i)

EIEHZAFEE(E)
FIFRZ A FEEEERBES:

(i)

Level 3 fair values (Continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements:

EEER EXTTREGAE gE
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range
KWATEEHEELSBIAL Y WELEIE BT 20% (2023: 20%)

FENEZEREE
Financial assets measured at FVOCI

Market-comparable approach

Discount for lack of marketability
TEE

P/B Ratio

MRAS B 7E BHN

tEBENLE

1.89x (2023:1.68x)

477x (2023:5.87)

EV/EBITDA ratio
mAX 26.48x-42.95x (2023; N/A)
P/E ratio
[ miEEMARENEREEE N/A (2023: N/A)
Market approach Indicative price from market information

AOTREAMS LB ITELMGT
NATFEEASEEEPHHAAL
hrERaseREE LA FE
BRRZTHRBAEIE) K
FETTER  ()TEE: (R H
BBE WERBHENTGER
M E: RETARE -

MEEBBREE CEMBE
Ha BLRRBEERNER
B S B rMER At (BIAEEL)
TRETHEREHREEER -
RITERT TEE B AN LTE
mEFHNHERM RE—AR
MHERHEEALARNHA
THEITRE - EIEFT 2R FFLE
MEAEFNEELSRETISR
BTN EBEITH ©

=

Br L BN RITRAFEM
FAENEMELTRFEESD
HESML REEES -

AREBEENERTFE MK
MBS TIEFTE BENLER
M b % e 11735 B /PR B2 eV FE 7R
MEEBZCHREEE MERZ
SR BEITIN 2 BEMEIR -

2024F F 8,

For the market-comparable approach adopted by the Bank on
estimating the fair value of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, the Bank applied:
(1) price-to-book ratio; (2) enterprise value to earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortization and (3) price-to-
earning ratio. The result was adjusted for lack of marketability
discount.

The market approach provides an indication of value by
comparing a business, business ownership interest, security,
or intangible asset with identical or comparable (that is similar)
subjects for which price information is available. The Bank
revised its valuation technique for its holding of an unlisted
equity security calibrated with P/E ratios of a selected set of
comparable companies based on a market transaction. Prior
to the revision, the unlisted equity security was valued based
on the indicative price from a market transaction.

Other than disclosed above, there were no changes in
valuation techniques of other unlisted equity securities held by
the Bank during the year.

The fair value measurement is positively correlated to price-to-
book ratio, enterprise value to earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization and indicative price from
market information, and is negatively correlated to the
discount for lack of marketability.
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(i)

(iif)

HIEMz AT EE(E)

MR2024F1RA3NH EEMEE
TEEE R TS - 18I0 % 5%
FEANUBEH ABRBSEHA
77 /9 E {th 2 1 U 25 4 0 85,501,000
SE P9 7T sk SR 4> 81,503,00052 F9 T
(2023412 A318 : /053,418,000
BP9 TT Bk R 4253,243,00002F9 7T) -

RATHRA A HEERARAR 22
BMTAZEREE BER2024F
12 A318 202312 A3IB KA F
BEDRITAK -

AITRATITEREERR
NEFLRIAZRAFEE-

PRIEEMROERFRRHEE
BRPHDFER DREASNR
FRAMRERM S o

FHRESMTIANRFEE
THREREEREEMRSE © Ut
ETARERRIFLMERKES
HREENEERRYERER
EEIAFEETHBEHERRE
K/BBEEBEERBRES DR
TR AHEXFEETE
RBEEEREHNE -

VABE AR A IR E B B R R 3%
BEXNATEE DELEE
RIRBEERAERHENBR™
5 M A - AT 35 ) K R
B A fEE - AIRERE R EERER
R BERERmERATEET
HIREBERBL TREEED R
BT DR T AR ERE
NP EEAER BEXEEANS
HEFNEERENRED TS
THUERE -

29 Fair values (continued)
(@) Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Level 3 fair values (Continued)

At 31 December 2024, if all of the significant unobservable
inputs favourably changed and unfavourably changed by 5%,
the Bank's other comprehensive income would have
increased by MOP85,501,000 and decreased by
MOP81,503,000 respectively (At 31 December 2023: increased
by MOP53,418,000 and decreased by MOP53,243,000
respectively).

The carrying amount of the Bank’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented in above.

the fair value of demand deposits and savings accounts with
no specific maturity is assumed to be the amount payable on
demand at the reporting date.

the fair value of variable rate financial instruments is assumed
to approximate their carrying amounts and, in the case of
loans and unquoted debt securities, does not, therefore,
reflect changes in their credit quality, as the impact of credit
risk is recognised separately by deducting the amount of the
expected credit losses/impairment loss and allowances from
both the carrying amount and fair value.

the fair value of fixed rate loans and mortgages carried at
amortised cost is estimated by comparing market interest
rates when the loans were granted with current market rates
offered on similar loans. Changes in the credit quality of loans
within the portfolio are not taken into account in determining
gross fair values, as the impact of credit risk is recognised
separately by deducting the amount of the expected credit
losses/impairment loss and allowances from both the carrying
amount and fair value.

Annual Report 2024
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NTAREEZ HBENBE BRTERM
eREER(RMEERDEHZMBEREK
FEiEsImim® -

@ BEEAEEEAXRLE

The following unaudited disclosures of financial information are prepared to
comply with the Guideline on the Disclosure of Financial Information issued
by the Monetary Authority of Macau ("AMCM”).

(@) Capital adequacy ratio of top consolidated group

106

55
Group
2024 2023
BARTE B E Capital adequacy ratios
TimRE—REARLE Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 17.1% 15.9%
—MERLLE Tier 1 capital ratio 17.8% 16.5%
BN Total capital ratio 19.7% 18.1%
EEfrAEEERBIMESREIEBE637 The calculation of the regulatory capital and capital charges of the top
REE (BARZELERRARER)BAFE consolidated group are in accordance with the Monetary Authority of
EEEARNREREN - Singapore Notice to Banks No. 637 (Notice on Risk Based Capital

2024F F 8,

Adequacy Requirement) for Banks incorporated in Singapore.
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(b) E < E 1 45 5 B 12 (b) Components of own funds
2024 2023
FRMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
ZREBRE—HR(CN)DEXR Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1”) capital
AR Composition:
= AR Qualifying common shares 360,000 120,000
BBRRTT Retained earnings 3,265,566 3,265,361
EFrEMemEk s Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,008,298 1,227,367
HMBHENFEE Other disclosed reserves 304,200 471,209
EER: Regulatory deductions:
T R EEYETEMEEM  Cumulative unrealized gains arising from
MEANREAFEBERE the revaluation of land and buildings (258,883) (367,529)
EEREB(BE—REEHE Regulatory reserves (including general and
MEFEEERE) specific regulatory reserves) - (167,009)
REEEHREBEIING Insignificant investments in CETI
TRETEEITNCNER capital instruments of financial institutions
EBRMIEERKE that are outside the scope
(B H10% P91 2 250 of regulatory consolidation
(@mount above the 10% threshold) (293,835) (436,667)
Mt — M AR Total CET1 capital
- _(_ GEEHAE)  (afterregulatory deductions) 4,385,346 412,732
BH—F& (AN ER Additional Tier 1 (“AT1”) capital - -
—REXRETR Total tier 1 capital 4,385,346 412,732
—RER: Tier 2 Capital
AR Composition:
BEBBAAZRERNNTEEEM  Eligible accumulated provisions for
TE KEIRFEB2EBREHFHE SR expected credit losses (ECL) in
BEESERERZ—REE stage 1& 2 and general regulatory
Eﬁ 1 reserves required by the AMCM 198,767 196,937
AERAAZRERNE LMK Eligible cumulative unrealized gains
BEYNETEESMEMAELSMN  arsing from the revaluation of
2EAFEARKS land and buildings 51,610 51,610
THREARMEE (KEEEHRIE)  Total tier 2 capital (after regulatory
. dedyctions 250,377 248,547
BEE DR Total own funds 4,635,723 4,361,279
BEEECHBBRERTDZBERRMESE The calculation on the components and total amount of own funds after
/5%5010/B/2023-DSB/AMCMSR i & 48 RIFHE - deduction is in accordance with Circular No. 010/B/2023-DSB/AMCM.
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€ EEXxZE (c) Capital adequacy
iy EXxZEHE (i) Capital adequacy ratio
2024 2023
BT R E Capital adequacy ratios
TERE—REARLE Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 22.95% 20.27%
— R EARLE Tier 1 capital ratio 22.95% 20.27%
FER= PN Total capital ratio 24.26% 21.50%

108

(i)

iii) %

ERAFZTRLLERZZRBRAM S
011/2015 5% 3 & 47 Bl 51 & -

m};

ISES

The calculation on the capital adequacy ratio is in accordance with
Notice No.011/2015-AMCM.

THERBRZERER (ii) Market risk capital requirement
2024 2023
FEMT FIRPIT
MOP’000 MOP’000
mERERz ERENR: The market risk capital requirements for
—FEE g — Interest rate risk 1,057 -
— R = B2 — Equity position risk -
—HNEE [, B2 — Foreign exchange risk 13,881 8,584
—E o A ke — Commodity risk - -
DNFE T35 [ B 4B 58 Weighted market risk exposures 14,938 8,584
TETAZEERRBRNESE (i) Creditrisk weighted amounts of derivatives
2024 2023
FREMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
EEEL Exchange rate contracts 8,212 1,431
MEEEE L Interest rate swap contracts 3,430 4,967
RZEMIE LY Equity contracts 42 -
1,684 6,398

TEEE R INEZEERT A Z BB N
BIRIESERBESEMN055 2 &
AFRERHEBTEAERIARR S H

FEAKR BMA - BERAH - FIX
5 IR 60 A 0 TR 2 LI A

N F 0% ZE100%°

IS B R R SR FR Lz E

2024F F 8,

Credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed in
accordance with AMCM Guideline Notice 011/2015-AMCM on capital
adequacy and depends on the status of the counterparty and the
maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range from 0% to 100% for
exchange rate, interest rate swap and equity contracts.

These amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral netting
arrangements.
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d) EE =R (d) Credit risk
iy BHEESMN (i) Analysis on past due assets
BITRAEBERAMEBETFEERITHIE Advances to banks are only made to banks with good credit rating.
TR - RFEFNEEEZSTIT: The credit quality of advances to customers can be analysed as
follows:
2024
HEFEX BEHEREX
EFERAE BEoE BEHREER (FE3RE)
Gross Percentage

advances of gross Expected

to advancesto Collateral creditlosses

customers customers value (stage 3)

TRMAR % TRMRT TRMAT

MOP’000 % MOP’000 MOP’000

RFEEF@BEEDTHBHM:  Grossadvances to customers which
have been past due for:

-6 ALIATEIEAL L -6 months or less but over 3 months 25,420 0.14% 24,753 667

~1FHUATEBEAL L  —1yearorless but over 6 months 7,856 0.04% 7,818 38

-1 £ - Over 1 year 10,073 0.06% 9,396 677

43,349 0.24% 41,967 1,382

2023
EEFER BHEREX
KPENBE B R EHRER (E3MEER)
Gross Percentage

advances of gross Expected

to advances to Collateral credit losses

customers customers value (stage 3)

FRAT % FEMT FEMT

MOP’000 % MOP'000 MOP’000

EFEF@EETRBE:  Grossadvances to customers which
have been past due for:

-6 ALATEIME AL L - 6months or less but over 3 months 11,900 0.06% 10,808 1,092

-1Fsk A MEGMEAA L —Tyearorless but over 6 months 6,330 0.03% 6,082 248

-1 E - Over 1year 11,476 0.06% 11,326 150

29,706 0.15% 28,216 1,490
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d) EER B c4) (d) Credit risk (continueq)

(i) EEREEIEZEEEZSN (i) Credit quality analysis under regulatory asset classification
ITHRAFBROTEP ZEFMEB R The following loans and advances to non bank customers and
NMEMBEMEMEEZRBRRNSE other assets are broken down into major classes of assets
B 012/20215% & 2 B E B4 R K Al respectively based on the asset classification required by Notice
RAMEL D8 2840 - no. 012/2021 AMCM.

2024
FIRR F2RR HIRR SRS
AGBE ERREE BERERRL BUGREX RUAGREX BREX
Outstanding Collateral Stagel Stage2 Stage3 Total
balance value ECL ECL ECL ECL
TRMR TRMR TEAR TEAR TEAR TEAR
MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000

BeRERRTREFE Cashand balances with and loans

AREFMER and advances to banks
o Pass 989,038 - 19 46 - 65
REERHBH Loans and advances to customers
o Pass 16,315,190 - 29,034 56,498 85 85,617
heg Special mention 1,182,302 - - 3,17 179 113,296
RRE Substandard 36,329 36,329 - - - -
AR Doubtful 15,400 12,943 - - 2,456 2,456
BXE Loss 10,392 9,610 - - 782 782

17,559,613 58,882 29,034 169,615 3,502 202,151

BPBEITR/SUAF  Securitiesissued by Macao SAR

SREERLTZES  Governmentand/or AMCM
g8 Pass 4,106,254 - - - - -
BEZENE Certificates of deposit held
i Pass 672,986 - 83 - - 83
EfEH Other securities
o Pass 5,172,882 - 1,790 10 - 1,800
HABERAEUERE  Contingent liabilities and

=8 commitments to extend credit
i Pass 2,954,896 - 2,078 1,156 - 3,234

110 202455%
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d) EERB#) (d) Credit risk (continueq)
(il EEREEIEZEELEEZSN (E) (ii) Credit quality analysis under regulatory asset classification
(Continued)
2023
F1EG LWL FIMBE B RS
AAHE  ERREE BHERELX BHERBX EHEREX ERE%
QOutstanding Collateral Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
balance value ECL ECL ECL ECL

TRATL TRATL TRATL TRAT TRATL TRATL
MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000

B4 RFHERTEEFIE . Cashand balances with and loans

AREFHZH and advances to banks
EFE Pass 1,265,091 - 3 - - 38
RFEFNBR Loans and advances to customers
a4 Pass 19,411,182 - 23,281 5,172 629 29,682
hagt Special mention 88,048 - - 754 61 815
BB Substandard 26,905 26,905 - - - -
B3 Doubtful 17668 15,261 - - 2408 2408
BXE Loss 12,059 1,584 - - 476 476

19,555,862 53,750 23,281 6,526 3,574 33381

BEEEMAR/38H  Securities issued by Macao SAR

TREERET2ES  Governmentand/or AMCM
g Pass 3,582,494 - - - - -
Hinfs Other securities
FER Pass 5,287180 - 1219 210 - 1429
SABELAENERE  Contingent liabilities and

=5 commitments to extend credit
ERH Pass 2561338 - 1743 27 - 2,020
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d) EERB#) (d) Credit risk (continueq)
(iii) WHELBZTETREDHN (iiiy Geographical analysis of derivatives
2024

s BB DI Hith it
Macau HongKong Singapore Others Total
TRMAT TRMERT TRMT FRMAT TRMAT
MOP’000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP’000

EREH Exchange rate contracts
—12 5 - Swaps - 1,494,255 - - 1,494,255
N - Options purchased 3,938 - 1,120 - 5,058
—h ~ Options written 930 83 3,941 104 5,058
FlEBHEL Interest rate swap contracts - 2,244,356 - - 2,244,356

REE AL Equity contracts
= Il - Options purchased 654 - - - 654
—h i E - Options written - - 654 - 654
5,522 3,738,694 5,715 104 3,750,035
2023

R e HN Hit h
Macau Hong Kong Singapore Others Total
TRAT TRMT TRMT FRAT TEMT
MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000

EXAH Exchange rate contracts
—RH - Forwards - - 104 - 104
—i2H - Swaps - 120,295 - - 120,295
Nl - Options purchased - - 2186 - 2,186
—h i EE - Options written 1,961 65 40 120 2,186
FIREHEL Interest rate swap contracts - 4,244,395 - - 4,244,395
1,961 4,364,755 2,330 120 4,369,166

M2 2024545%
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(e) FIZEE k& (e) Interest rate risk
ATz ERBRABAETAETEER Interest rate risk is monthly measured and submitted to AMCM quarterly.
RBERBEISER RENRFTBEE Only currency that accounts for more than 5% of either banking book
RITEESBBEPGELBIRS% CEE - assets or liabilities is required to be reported.
LTS RIBBERMESEREMHN(RER The following table demonstrates, in accordance the Guideline on
BEIRES|) BRITETRAREHEERA - Management of Interest Rate Risk issued by AMCM, the net impact to
BRERFITHE200E A H ATEBEEER the economic value of the Bank with an assumed parallel shift of 200
FFTE WHAREERUTFAMNES basis points throughout different time spectrum multiplied by different
+ o weighting factors for different currencies.
2024 2023
FREMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
SR MOP 46,282 48,266
B HKD 1,052 (10,100)
ETT usb 9,821 27,635
HeEEENTENER Impact on economic value
Ee 22BN as % of own funds 1.23% 1.51%
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(f) HMEE P (f) Foreign exchange risk
2024
ke o ARY Ey Hihgw a5t
Chinese Other
MOP HKS$ Renminbi uss$ currencies Total
FREMT FRMT FRMT FREMT FRMT FREMT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FREEE Total net long positions 344,292 - - 28,798 942 374,032
FREBRAE Total net short positions - 360,169 11,255 - 2,608 374,032
344,292 (360,169) (11,255) 28,798 (1,666) -
2023
BFY Vot AR EVI Hih g™ B
Chinese Other
MOP HKS Renminbi Uss currencies Total
FEMT TR TR TR T TR FEMT
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FREAE Total net long positions 322,309 - - - 2,936 325,245
FREBRAE Total net short positions - 312,181 7763 4502 799 325,245
322,309 (312,181) (7763) 4502) 2137 -
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(f) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

2024
it ARY Ep &t
Chinese

HK$ Renminbi uss Total

FREMT FREMT FRMT FREMT

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

REEE Spot assets 13,635,076 395,843 3,754,003 17,784,922
REAE Spot liabilities (15,114,437) (401,740) (2,613,886) (18,130,063)

=EE A Forward purchases 1,119,192 180,537 194,526 1,494,255
REIE Forward sales - (185,895) (1,305,845) (1,491,740)
(360,169) (11,255) 28,798 (342,626)

2023
T AR EN &&F
Chinese

HKS Renminbi ussS Total

TR FRFT TR FIEFT

MOP000 MOP'000 MOP’000 MOP’000

MEEE Spot assets 13,712,025 573,694 3,562,526 17,848,245
REBARE Spot liabilities (14,144,605) (581,457) (3,446,275) (18,172,337)

REIEA Forward purchases 120,399 - - 120,399
RHEN Forward sales - - (120,753) (120,753)
(312,181) (7,763) (4,502) (324,446)
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(g) Liquidity risk

2024 2023
FEMT TR
MOP’000 MOP’000
BRFHRERS &R Average minimum weekly cash in hand 558,284 545,876
GREYERE & Average weekly cash in hand 808,022 857,953
FHARRERBEE Average month-end specified liquid assets 8,795,709 7,803,482
2024 2023
% %

FHERRERSDEELEN  Average month-end ratio of specified
afEx liquid assets to total basic liabilities 35.6 328
—EAFERBE DL E Average one-month liquidity ratio 53.8 51.0
“ERAFHREE X Average three-months liquidity ratio 47.8 475
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2024F12 A31H
LIST OF FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
As at 31 December 2024
X EERE = REEE B
Type/Sector of activity Name Book Value Percentage
BB —AEBEIE H %8 (®MT)
Shares by sector of activity (MOP)
RIT R R H AT BE=RERBERQA
Banks, insurance and other services Luen Fung Hang Insurance Company Limited 68,481,000 12.00%
BETAZSRERNDERAR
Luen Fung Hang Life Limited 63,056,000 10.50%
A R TOTAL 131,537,000

In accordance with the article 85 of Macau Financial System Act
BERFIEREBREZEHNEENTREEZAE
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List of Branches

R2024 12 A31H As at 31 Dec 2024
@i B R 24158

AHEHDT =T EE K855k

BT 78 F| 22 5 15 19-215%

ENBAIT Ei58:12 5 IK325RC-F

Ao T B 3 D K B X 338 5%

Bt EHIT =i S E 2958 A

WHEDT thIE S5 )\ FT1955%

TBFEST B IETST95%
KEFREWDIT TR R AT356-366 R E AL KB
FOFEDT FTOFERELEES 28657

118 2024543

Main Branch

Hong Kai Si Branch
San Kiu Branch

Hak Sa Van Branch
Toi San Branch

Kou Tei Vu Kai Branch
lao Hon Branch

Ho Pin San Kai Branch
Flower City Branch
San Hau On Branch

241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro

85 Avenida Horta e Costa

19-21 Estrada de Adolfo Loureiro

32C-F Estrada de Marginal do Hipodromo
338 Avenida de AT. Barbosa

29A Rua Pedro Coutinho R/C

195 Rua Oito do Bairro lao Hon

75-79 Rua Almirante Sergio

356-366, Rua de Evora, Edif. Lei Fung, Taipa
286 Alameda Dr. Carlos D'Assumpcao R/C
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